
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE 
COLORADO 

2450 E. Quincy Avenue                     Village Center 

Cherry Hills Village, CO  80113                     Telephone 303‐789‐2541 

www.cherryhillsvillage.com                                               FAX 303‐761‐9386 
 

Notice:  Agenda is subject to change. 

If you will need special assistance in order to attend any of the City’s public meetings, please notify the City of Cherry Hills Village at 303‐789‐2541, 48 hours in 

advance. 

 

City Council Agenda 
Tuesday, February 16, 2016 

 

6:00 p.m. – Study Session – Presentation of the Trail Inventory Project 

 

6:30 p.m. – Regular Meeting 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

2.  Roll Call of Members 

 

3.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Audience Participation Period (limit 5 minutes per speaker) 

 

5.  Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes – February 2, 2016 

 

6.  Items Removed From Consent Agenda 

 

7.  Unfinished Business 

 

8.  New Business 

a.  Public Hearing – Request by Verizon Wireless for a Conditional Use Permit to Install a Roof‐

Mounted Wireless Communication Facility at 1400 East Hampden Avenue (Shoppes at Cherry 

Hills) (Public Hearing) 

b.  Continuation of City Attorney Legal Services 

 

9.  Reports 

a.  Mayor 

b.  Members of City Council 

c.  Reports from Members of City Boards and Commissions 

d.  City Manager and Staff 

  (i)  Department Monthly Reports 

(ii)  Unaudited Financial Statements 

e.  City Attorney 

 

10.  Adjournment 

 



February 4, 2016

City of Cherry Hills Village 
Trails Inventory

City of 
Cherry Hills Village



This project commenced in September 2015, with completion in February 2016. Below 
is a list of contributors to the City of Cherry Hills Village Trails Inventory. The City of 

Cherry Hills Village and the Consultant Team would like to extend a thank you to the 
members of the Parks, Trails, and Recreation Commission for their contributions.

Ryan Berninzoni, Parks, Trails and Recreation Adminstrator

Emily Kropf, Special Projects Coordinator

Nathan Silverstein, City Parks Intern

Robert Zuccaro, Community Development Director

Jon Altschuld, Landscape Architect, Project Manager
Jamie Ramos, Project Principal
Ahmad Salah, GIS Manager
Ivana Vladisavljevic, GIS
Tony Pollack, Legal Research Manager
Nathalie Duran, Legal Research
Kirsten Muncy, Legal Research

Acknowledgments:

City of 
Cherry Hills Village



Table of Contents
CHAPTER I: PROJECT INTRODUCTION ����������������������������������������������1
Project Introduction + Goals ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������1
Past Documents ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������2

CHAPTER II: PROJECT PROCESS ���������������������������������������������������������3
Project Schedule �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3
Project Process + Methods �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3

CHAPTER III: LONG-RANGE MAINTENANCE PROGRAM �����������������5
Existing Trail Inventory��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������5
Analysis + Recommendations �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������11

CHAPTER IV: LEGAL DOCUMENT REPORT ��������������������������������������21
Legal Document Report Introduction ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������21
Right-of-Way Document Review ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������21
Search for Missing Documents �����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������22

CHAPTER V: GIS MAPPING SYSTEM ������������������������������������������������23
GIS Mapping Introduction + Uses ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������23
GIS Data�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������23
Webmap Platform ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������24

CHAPTER VI: MAINTENANCE COSTS �����������������������������������������������27
Project Recommendation Costs ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������27
GIS Maintenance Costs ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������28

APPENDIX A: UPDATED EASEMENT BOOK �������������������������������������29
Table A: Subdivision Plats  ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������29
Table B: Other Documents ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������37

Pre-Existing Appendices (Under Separate Cover)
Appendix B: John Meade Park Master Plan
Appendix C: University Crossing Study
Appendix D: Little Dry Creek Study
Appendix E: Blue Ribbon Committee Report
Appendix F: Original SSPRD Easement Book
Appendix G: 2008 Cherry Hills Village Master Plan
Appendix H: CHV Trails Inventory of Existing Conditions



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK



City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

1 Chapter I: Project Introduction

Project Introduction + Goals

In the spring of 2015, the City of Cherry Hills Village received a grant from Arapahoe County Open Space 
to conduct a survey of all existing trails and associated infrastructure and prepare a long-term maintenance 
and repair program with the goal of maintaining the current system and increasing access for non-motorized 
activities. One of the main objectives of the project is to examine all easements and rights-of-way (ROW) to 
ensure City trails are currently within these easements/ROWs, as well as identify any 'unused' easements. This 
task involved researching approximately 280 plats within Cherry Hills Village and matching these up against 
the City's existing Parks and Trails Map. The results of this research are described in more detail in Chapter IV.

The City's trail system is well used and maintained, and its users are comprised of pedestrians, bicyclists, and 
equestrians. As the City does have a large equestrian community, many of the trails are Bridle Trails that are fairly 
informal and not ADA compliant. All of the trails are used by residents as well as visitors. The High Line Canal 
Trail bisects Cherry Hills Village from North to South, and there are numerous connections between City trails 
and the High Line Canal Trail.

While the trail system is in good usable condition, the objective of this project is to evaluate and inventory the 
entire City’s trail systems, align them with existing legal data, and make recommendations for the long-term 
success and improvement of the trail system. 

In order to accomplish this, the following Goals and Objectives have been developed:

► Verify and document easements and ROWs for all City Trails.

► Create an easily accessible online map that displays information on all City Trails and accompanying 
easements�

► Inventory all City Trail segments and evaluate for condition, improvements, and use-type.

►Develop realistic recommendations for implementation through a modified Context-Sensitive 
Solutions (CSS) process to ensure a balance of Safety, Mobility, Community, and Environmental goals.

►Identify potential future connections to major trails and facilities.

These goals, along with background documents and information, provide the guiding principles and vision for 
the City of Cherry Hills Village Trails Inventory.

CHAPTER I: PROJECT INTRODUCTION



City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Chapter I: Project Introduction 2

Past Documents

The City of Cherry Hills Village has an existing trail 
system that is generally well maintained and well 
used by residents of Cherry Hills Village, as well as 
neighboring communities. Many of the trails are on-
street or adjacent to streets, while others straddle 
private properties and intersect with public spaces 
such as parks. The City currently has a Parks and Trails 
Map which depicts the existing trail system.

In addition to this Parks and Trails Map, the City has 
completed multiple studies and plans for the trail 
system. Below is a list of these documents, along with 
a brief summary of each:

John Meade Park & Alan Hutto Memorial 
Commons Master Plan:

Completed in the summer of 2015, this Master 
Plan (Appendix B) creates a new vision for the 
Village Center area at the intersection of University 
Boulevard and Quincy Avenue. The Master Plan 
incorporates the Alan Hutto Memorial Commons 
into the Village Center and adds amenities such 
as natural areas, trails, and gathering places. 
The Plan recommends a location for the future 
Administration Building as well.

University Underpass Study:
Completed in 2007, this study (Appendix C) 
identified and examined the feasibility of installing 
pedestrian crossings over University Boulevard 
at Quincy Avenue and Union Avenue. The study 
provided analysis, planning, and cost estimates for 
the multiple options.

Dry Creek Study:
Completed in spring of 2010, this study (Appendix 
D) focused on protecting and enhancing the Little 
Dry Creek Corridor within Cherry Hills Village. 
This included studying flood hazards, vegetation, 
wildlife resources, and opportunities for recreation. 
The report addresses ownerships, easements, and 
issues along the creek corridor as well.

Blue Ribbon Panel Report:
The Blue Ribbon Panel Report (Appendix E) 
outlines the Vision for Cherry Hills Village Parks, 
Trails, Recreation, Historic Preservation and Open 
Spaces to be achieved by 2020. While the report is 
very extensive and covers multiple topics, there are 
some over-arching ideas and themes throughout 
the document. First, Cherry Hills Village has long 
been defined by larger private properties and the 
characteristics that accompany this. These include 
an aesthetic and character more reminiscent of 
country living than urban cities. Next, there are 
‘Scenic Treasures’ within the City that need to be 

protected, including the High Line Trail Canal Trail 
corridor, the East-West Wetlands Trail corridor, and 
view corridors from Quincy, Colorado Blvd, Holly 
Street, and Cherry Lane Drive.

Original Easement Book:
The original Easement Book (Appendix F) is a 
document created by South Suburban Parks and 
Recreation District (SSPRD) that lists approximately 
220 plats and 10 vacations. The document lists 
the plat, the book and page where found, and a 
description of any easements. The Book was last 
revised January 18, 2000.

Cherry Hills Village Master Plan:
The 2008 Cherry Hills Village Master Plan 
(Appendix G) defines the community's vision, 
including the existing and intended character 
of the City. It also defines goals and strategies 
for Land Use/Development, Character, and most 
important to this project, Open Space, Parks, Trails, 
and Recreation. Goals and strategies from this 
document were used as a basis for the goals and 
vision of this project.

Dry Creek Study Map



3 Chapter II: Project Process

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Project Schedule

Work on this project began in September of 2015, 
and was completed in February of 2016. The 6 
month schedule seen below was created to maximize 
momentum for the project while still meeting all City 
and Grant requirements. Many tasks were completed 
concurrently to minimize duplicate efforts and provide 
multiple review points.

The Parks, Trails, and Recreation Commission (PTRC) 
was involved at various stages of the project. First, 
it was given an overview of the project, its goals 
and objectives, and the work that was completed 
between the September start-up and mid-November. 
The second PTRC presentation was held on January 
14th, and presented the completed DRAFT Trails 
Plan Document, as well as the completed WebGIS 
application.

At the conclusion of the project, the Trails Plan 
Document was presented to the City Council for 
approval.

Project Process + Methods

Field Data Collection

Prior to this project commencing, the City of Cherry 
Hills Village began collecting current data on all City 
Trails. This data was collected via photographs, notes, 
and GPS points converted to GIS shapefiles. Some of 
the data included:

• Trail conditions
• Bridge conditions
• Signs
• Bollards
• Trail markers
• Trail damage
• Vegetative obstructions
• Trash cans
• Benches
• Utility boxes
• Fire hydrants
• Ruts in trails
• Misc. features

All of this data was collected with locational data 
(GPS) and varying amounts of detail on condition and 
general notes. Data was not collected for the on-street 
trails, as these trails are primarily small residential 
streets that also function as trails and trail connectors. 
This field data is summarized in the City's 'CHV Trails 
Inventory of Existing Conditions' (Appendix H).

GIS Databases + Legal Document Research

In the beginning months of the project, the consultant 
team gathered the collected GPS/GIS data and began 
organizing the files for use in the project Geodatabases.   
Because all of the field collected data was point 
data, some of this (such as the Trails) did need to be 
converted to polyline data. The City staff completed 
this by utilizing the existing Arapahoe County GIS 
polyline data for trails, and joining attributes from the 
field collected point data.

With the existing trails data in hand, the consultant 
team began tying the legal document research to 
individual trails, easements, and subdivisions. The 
consultant team researched and examined all ~220 
plats and 10 vacations listed in the original Easement 
Book (Appendix E), as well as an additional ~65 plats. 
The team identified all easements and ROWs on these 
plats, and established which trails (from the GIS data) 
laid within which easements/ROWs. The findings of 
the legal document research is described in detail in 
Chapter IV and Appendix H.

Scans of the legal documents (PDF format) were then 
linked to trail segments and subdivision polygons to 
allow Users to have easy access to pertinent legal 
documents. In order to graphically display the network 
of easements and ROWs, buffers were created based 
on the trail centerlines and the easement or ROW 
width.

The consultant team created 3 new shapefiles in order 
for the Webmap to more closely resemble the existing 
Parks and Trails Map. These shapefiles are:

• Land Uses - This file depicts the Cherry Hills 
Village Parks, the High Line Canal, Churches, 
Schools, and Country Club/HOA Open Spaces.
• Trailheads/Parking - This file shows approximate 
locations of trailheads/parking areas based on 
the original Parks and Trails Map.
• Entry Features - This file shows approximate 
locations and notes for entry features owned by 
the City. This data was created based on existing 
City data.

CHAPTER II: PROJECT PROCESS



Chapter II: Project Process 4

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

All project GIS data, included the files created by the consultant team, was compiled into four feature datasets 
(these are described in further detail in Chapter V):

• Base_Layers
• City_Features
• Trail_Features
• Trail_Easements

WebGIS Platform

Once the GIS databases were compiled and legal documents were linked to the shapefiles, creation of the 
interactive WebGIS online platform began. All of the geodatabase data was uploaded to a newly created 
Webmap application, where final graphics were established. Creating the Webmap application also included 
the creation of three separate Webmaps:

• City Staff Webmap - For view and use by City staff only. This Webmap includes all of the GIS data 
collected and created for the project.
• Parks and Trails Webmap - This map is for public use and does not include data such as the Easement 
and ROW buffers, Unclaimed Easements, Trail Repairs (Ruts in Trail), Trail Markers, or other Obstructions.
• Community Development Webmap - This map is for public use and contains the same data as the 
Parks and Trails Webmap. The one difference is that it will show the Subdivisions layer (with linked legal 
documents) by default. This map will be linked on the City's Community Development webpage with the 
intent of providing developers easier access to relevant plats and easement documents.

Trails Recommendations

As the work on the legal document research and GIS geodatabases was wrapping up, the consultant team was 
able to begin creating recommendations for the improvement and maintenance of the Trail System. A set of five 
recommendations (described in detail in Chapter III) were developed based on:

• Industry standards
• City staff input
• Findings of the legal document research
• Experience from previous trails master plans and studies
• Comparisons to similar community's trails master plans

Because two of the five recommendations suggested actions that are above and beyond the normal upkeep 
and maintenance of trail systems, cost estimates were prepared. These cost estimates were created using recent 
cost estimate figures from projects within Colorado. To account for material cost changes and unforeseen 
challenges, a 20% contingency was added to these estimates.

Home View of the Parks and Trails Webmap



5 Chapter III: Long-Range Maintenance Program

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

This chapter details the findings of the trails inventory and analysis. Much of the inventory data was collected 
by City staff and verified by the consultant team. To verify the City collected data, the consultant team first 
reviewed all GIS data and accompanying spreadsheets. The data was then reviewed for accuracy as it relates 
to location, data, and condition notes. Any corrections were made in the GIS databases. A criteria for defining 
trail conditions was established, based on qualitative notes in the CHV Trails Inventory of Existing Conditions 
(Appendix H) and field visits. 

The legal document research portion of the project, which investigated all existing trail easements and plats in 
relation to City trails, is addressed in Chapter IV.

Existing Trail Inventory

The existing trail system within Cherry Hills Village is well maintained and used. It consists of a variety of trails 
ranging from on street trails, to sidewalks, to unpaved trails, to bridle trails. Cherry Hills Village is largely an 
equestrian community and many of the trail system users are equestrian riders.

The existing trail system provides connections between public facilities and residential communities throughout 
the City, including the High Line Canal regional trail. The High Line Canal runs through Cherry Hills Village and 
provides many amenities for residents and visitors alike.

Cherry Hills Village currently has a Parks and Trails Map  that diagrams the majority of the trails as well as their 
trail type. This map shows the City Trail Numbers, which are based on a map grid numbering system. The first 
two digits of the trail number refer to the grid location of the primary direction of the trail. The second two 
digits refer to the grid location perpendicular to the trail. The map is available physically at the City offices, and 
digitally from the City's website.

CHAPTER III: LONG-RANGE MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

Current Parks and Trails Map



Chapter III: Long-Range Maintenance Program 6

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Prior to, and during the beginning stages of the project, the City utilized staff to collect massive amounts of 
data on the existing trails in Cherry Hills Village. Data collection was done manually with GPS units, and included 
data such as:

• Trail Number - Cherry Hills Village Trail Number, based on the City's Trail Numbering system, described 
in previous section.

• Trail Surface - Type of trail surface, along with notes concerning condition and ruts.
• Trail Dimensions - Length and width of trail segments, and estimated square footage.



7 Chapter III: Long-Range Maintenance Program

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

• Areas in need of Repair - Ruts, dips, etc. listed and described by trail segment.

• Vegetation Notes - Notes on trail vegetation, mainly vegetation that is encroaching on the existing trails.

• Seeding Notes - Notes concerning native grass alongside trails (or on trails for some bridle trails), including 
condition and areas needing repair.



Chapter III: Long-Range Maintenance Program 8

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

• Trail Markers and Signs - Listed by trail segment, with condition notes.

• Trail Obstructions - Notes on items such as utility boxes, telephone poles, drainage issues, and other 
miscellaneous obstructions

Along with this GPS data, the City also collected photographs and detailed notes for each of the elements. 

Many of the trails within Cherry Hills Village are on street trails. These trails are generally in residential areas 
with very low traffic flows. For these trails, there is no formal trail, simply the paved or unpaved road. While 
there is not a formal trail, these trails serve as important connectors and are well used by residents within their 
neighborhoods, as well as to reach larger trails and parks. While these trails are shown on maps, the conditions 
of these trails were not inventoried as they are primarily roads, and are inventoried and maintained as roads.

All of the City's collected data has been rectified with County GIS data and basemaps, and then integrated into 
the overall GIS databases being created for this project. The consultant team has added additional data fields 
to the City collected data as well. Finally, all of the data will be made available to the City for use through both 
Desktop GIS and the Online WebGIS map.



City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Chapter III: Long-Range Maintenance Program9

The total inventory of trails has resulted in 444 
segments of trail comprising 126 unique trail numbers. 
The total trail system (including on street trails and the 
High Line Canal trail) is approximately 46 miles. The 
High Line Canal is 5 miles through the City of Cherry 
Hills Village. The on street trails account for 26 miles 
of trail.

The number of trail segments is very high because 
the trails are split according to easements, ROWs, 
and plats. The 126 trail numbers, however, are not 
split based upon easements. There are significantly 
more trail numbers than currently exist on the City's 
Parks and Trails Map. This comes as a result of the 
decision to number all trails, including on street trails 
and sidewalks along major roads. Neither of these 
categories of trails were previously assigned Cherry 
Hills Village trail numbers.

Trail Map by Cherry Hills Village Trail Number

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s 

Tr
ai

ls
28

 M
ile

s
61

%

O
n 

St
re

et
 T

ra
ils

13
 M

ile
s

28
%

H
ig

h 
Li

ne
 C

an
al

 T
ra

il
5 

M
ile

s
11

%



City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Chapter III: Long-Range Maintenance Program 10

The majority of these trails are in good or fair condition, 
however some of the trails are in need of some scale 
of rut/damage repair. This damage was inventoried 
by trail number and segment. To evaluate the trails' 
overall condition, the following scale was used:

• Good - No major repairs needed. The trail is 
in good usable condition and does not pose any 
safety risks due to surface condition or upkeep.
• Fair - Minor repairs are needed, including 
minor ruts. The trail is in good usable condition 
and does not pose major safety risks due to 
surface condition or upkeep.
• Poor - Areas are in need of repair in order for 
the trail not to pose safety risks due to surface 
condition or upkeep. The trails labeled as Poor 
generally have areas of significant ruts or trail 
washout. There were only a select handful of 
trails labeled as Poor, and the majority of these 
only require repairs in select areas along the trail.

The map at left shows the entire trail system by 
condition. All on-street trails were assumed to be in 
Good condition based on the fact that these trails are 
primarily roads that are also used as trails and trail 
connections.

Trail Map by Existing Trail Condition

Examples of Trail Surface Conditions



11 Chapter III: Long-Range Maintenance Program

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Analysis + Recommendations

In order to address the expansion, continued success, and prioritization of future trail projects, the following set 
of five recommendations have been developed. These recommendations were developed based on:

• Industry standards
• City staff input
• Findings of the legal document research
• Experience from previous trails master plans and studies
• Comparisons to similar community's trails master plans

In order to ensure all recommendations made by this Trails Plan are realistic, implementable, and meet goals, a 
modified Context-Sensitive Solutions approach was implemented. Each recommendation was graded based on 
the following goals:

• Accommodates use by pedestrians, bicyclists, and equestrians
• Fits aesthetic characteristics for Cherry Hills Village
• Creates stronger connections to the Village Center area
• Increases connectivity between areas within Cherry Hills Village
• Increases connectivity between CHV trails and the High Line Canal Trail
• Provides safe road crossings
• Increases public knowledge and awareness of the City Trail System
• Increases City knowledge for future planning efforts
• Low installation/up front cost
• Low maintenance/on-going cost

The CSS chart below shows the result of the vetting process. Each recommendation is given a score of Good, 
Better, or Best for each goal. Best choices are worth 3 points, Better options 2 points, and Good options are 
1 point each. Totaling the scores shows that Recommendation #1 meets the most goals the best, followed 
by Recommendations #2 and #4. The fact that all of the scores were close shows that all of the proposed 
recommendations do meet multiple goals.



Chapter III: Long-Range Maintenance Program 12

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Recommendation #1 - Establish Trail Design Guidelines:

The first recommendation is to establish and implement trail design guidelines for all City trails. Based on the 
existing trails and the trail users' needs, the following four trail types have been established:

• Paved Mixed Use Trails
• Unpaved Mixed Use Trails
• Bridle Trails
• On Street Trails

All four trail types are designed to accommodate walking/jogging, biking, as well as equestrian use. Both of 
the mixed use trail types are designed to be ADA accessible, while the Bridle Trails are more informal and not 
required to be ADA accessible. Because these trails are less formal, the level of difficulty is higher than that of 
the mixed use trails. Detailed explanations and specifications of each trail type are discussed on the following 
pages.

Paved Mixed Use Trails

The Paved Mixed Use Trail (PMU) Design guideline applies to all City trails that are paved and separated from 
roadways. This includes attached (on-curb) sidewalks, detached (with street lawn) sidewalks, and paved park 
trails. These trails generally serve as major routes and thoroughfares, but are also found in less major locations. 
All PMU trails should meet ADA requirements and accommodate pedestrians, bicyclists and equestrians. Where 
possible, a soft surface shoulder of at least 3' wide should be installed for better equestrian use. Currently, most 
of the PMU trails do not have this soft shoulder, and it is only possible in certain locations. Many PMU trails are 
adjacent to sod or native grass, which is also acceptable for better equestrian use, although it will not hold up 
as well to increased use.

Paved Mixed Use Trail Example Attached Sidewalk (PMU Trail Example)

Minimum Width

Surface

Slope

Cross-Slope

Curve Radii

Sight Distance

Horizontal Clearance

Vertical Clearance

8' (6' if not a major route)

Concrete or Asphalt

0-5% (ADA ramps allowed if needed)

Max. 2%

Aesthetic considerations

As required for road crossings

2' from edge of pavement 

10' Min., 12' preferred



13 Chapter III: Long-Range Maintenance Program

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Unpaved Mixed Use Trails

The Unpaved Mixed Use Trail (UMU) Design guideline applies to all City trails that are not paved, excluding 
bridle trails. These trails are more formal the bridle trails, with wide established paths. The surface material is 
typically compacted soil or crusher fines. All UMU trails should meet ADA requirements and accommodate 
pedestrians, bicyclists and equestrians. These trails are the most versatile of the trail types, and are suitable 
for use as major routes, minor routes, connector trails, and loops. When possible, these trails should connect 
to create loops, reducing the need for turn-around areas. The specifications below were designed with special 
considerations for equestrian users.

Unpaved Mixed Use Trail Example

Minimum Width

Surface

Slope

Cross-Slope

Curve Radii

Sight Distance

Horizontal Clearance

Vertical Clearance

6' if not intended for equestrian

8' if intended for equestrian

Crusher Fines or Compacted Soil

0-5% Max.

Max. 2%

10' Min., 12' preferred

Minimum of 50' for equestrians,

100' at road crossings

3' from edge of trail tread 

10' Min., 12' preferred



Chapter III: Long-Range Maintenance Program 14

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Bridle Trails

The Bridle Trail (BT) Design guideline applies to all City trails that are not paved and are not ADA accessible. 
These trails are less formal than the UMU trails, and are often single or double track trails. The surface material 
is typically compacted soil, mowed native grasses, or a combination of the two. The compacted soil is often a 
result of use of the trail rather than intentional compaction as a result of trail construction. All Bridle Trails should 
accommodate pedestrians, bicyclists and equestrians, although the difficulty is greater than the PMU and UMU 
trails. These trails can serve as connecting trails and minor routes, but usually are not major routes. When 
possible, these trails should connect to create loops, reducing the need for turn-around areas. The specifications 
below were designed with special considerations for equestrian users.

Unpaved Mixed Use Trail Example

Minimum Width

Surface

Slope

Cross-Slope

Curve Radii

Sight Distance

Horizontal Clearance

Vertical Clearance

6'

Compacted Soil, Mowed Native 

Grasses, or a combination

0-12% Max.

Max. 2%

8' Min., 10' preferred

Minimum of 30' for equestrians,

100' at road crossings

3' from edge of trail tread 

10' Min., 12' preferred



15 Chapter III: Long-Range Maintenance Program

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

On Street Trails

The design guidelines for the On Street Trails (OS) are less defined because these trails are roads first, and 
trails second. The surface, width, and other parameters of the 'trail' will vary based on the road. These are 
generally smaller residential roads that also serve as trails and trail connectors. Because Cherry Hills Village is 
largely a residential City, there are numerous On Street Trails on residential roads. These should accommodate 
pedestrians, bicyclists, and equestrians, although all of these uses should be at lower speeds to avoid conflicts 
with vehicles.

Paved On Street Trail Example

Unpaved On Street Trail Example



Chapter III: Long-Range Maintenance Program 16

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Paved Mixed Use Trail Example Paved Mixed Use Trail Example

Unpaved Mixed Use Trail Example

Bridle Trail Example Bridle Trail Example

On Street Trail Example

As described above, all four of the trail design guideline types are intended for pedestrian, bicyclist, and 
equestrian users. All of the existing Cherry Hills Trails have been categorized based on these design guidelines, 
and improvements to existing trails should be made to meet these guidelines. In general, the completion of 
general repairs and maintenance/up-keep as noted in the CHV Trails Inventory of Existing Conditions (Appendix 
H)is all that is required for the existing trails to meet these design guidelines.

Construction of all future trails should be based on these trail design guidelines as well.



City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Chapter III: Long-Range Maintenance Program17

There is a fifth category of trail, although this project 
will not make any recommendations pertaining to it. 
This category is the High Line Canal Trail, a regional trail 
that is not under the jurisdiction of the City of Cherry 
Hills Village. This trail is a significant resource for the 
City, and this project has only made recommendations 
pertaining to connections to the High Line Canal Trail. 
The City has recieved funding for an underpass at 
Hampden Avenue to create a stronger connection 
for the High Line Canal Trail across Hampden Avenue. 
Construction is expected to begin in 2017.

The existing trails have been categorized into these 
five trail types, resulting in the following lengths:

Paved Mixed Use Trails -  14 Miles
Unpaved Mixed Use Trails -  4 Miles
Bridle Trails -    10 Miles
On Street Trails -    13 Miles
High Line Canal Trail -   5 Miles

High Line Canal Trail

Trail Map by Cherry Hills Village Trail Type

Br
id

le
 T

ra
ils

22
%

O
n 

St
re

et
 T

ra
ils

28
%

Pa
ve

d 
M

ix
ed

 U
se

30
%

U
np

av
ed

 M
ix

ed
 U

se
9% H

ig
h 

Li
ne

 C
an

al
 T

ra
il

11
%



City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Chapter III: Long-Range Maintenance Program 18

Recommendation #2 - 
Further Research Potential Uses for Unused 
Easements:

The map at right shows existing trail easements and 
right-of-ways. Trails within easements are shown with 
blue highlights, and right-of-ways are shown with yellow 
highlights. The highlights are drawn at the approximate 
width of the ROW or easement, centered on the trail 
centerline. Trail easements that are currently unused 
are shown with purple highlights. Some of the 'Unused 
Easements' are directly adjacent to existing trails. These 
are still shown as Unused because there are 2 or more 
easements and the trail is only utilizing one of them. 
Therefore, these are still easements available for future 
use for trail facilities.

While some of the unused easements would not likely 
provide meaningful connections, some of them could:

• Create key connections to existing and proposed 
trails and facilities

• Improve connectivity to the Village Center

• Improve connectivity to the High Line Canal Trail

The unused easements identified by this plan have been 
reviewed by City staff and the PTRC, and improvements 
to these easements may be pursued in the future. 
However, easements from additional property owners 
may be needed in order to complete projects. Any 
proposed improvements will be addressed on a case-
by-case basis by City staff and the PTRC.

Easements, Right-of-Ways, and Unused Easements



City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Chapter III: Long-Range Maintenance Program19

Recommendation #3 - 
Improve Signage and Trail Network Identity

The next recommendation of this Trails Plan is to 
increase public awareness of the trail system by:

• Fixing any broken or leaning trail markers. 
These are noted in Appendix H.

• Continue to add visible trail marker signs 
and bollards as necessary. These trail numbers 
should be aligned to the trail numbers assigned 
in this Trails Plan document.

• A number of existing trail markers have 
an incorrect trail number. These should be 
corrected, and the trail numbers in this Trails 
Plan document should be used in the case of 
discrepancies. The incorrect trail markers are 
noted in Appendix H.

• As part of this project, the Cherry Hills Village 
Parks and Trails Map has been re-created to 
be in line with the trail numbers, trail types, 
and trail locations shown in the Webmap. In 
addition to having the foldable Parks and Trails 
Maps available at City offices, the consultant 
team recommends the addition of small Map 
dispenser kiosks along the trail system (see map 
at right). These dispensers can be attached to 
existing trash/pet pick-up stations, and can also 
be installed on new poles. Adding dispensers to 
the inventoried trash/pet pick-up stations results 
in 3 dispensers. This plan also recommends 
adding 6 dispensers, at the following locations:
• John Meade Park
• Village Center
• Three Pond Park
• Blackmer Common
• Dahlia Hollow Park
• Volunteer Park

• A QR code has been added to the foldable 
Parks and Trails Map that links Users to the 
online Webmap.

Proposed Map Dispenser Locations

Trisleeve Sign Map Dispenser Option 'House' Map Dispenser Option



City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Chapter III: Long-Range Maintenance Program 20

Recommendation #4 - 
General Repairs based on Trails Inventory:

The City's CHV Trails Inventory of Existing Conditions 
(Appendix H) compiled a great deal of information 
on obstructions, vegetation, structures, signs, and trail 
surface conditions. Many of these data points include 
notes on condition and needed repairs. These repairs 
vary, and include items such as:

• Trimming overgrown vegetation
• Re-seeding grass areas
• Fixing ruts and trail wash-out areas
• Fixing broken or leaning bollards, trail marks, 
and signs
• Repairing pavement cracks and damage
• Repairing fences

All of this data has been included in the online Webmap 
viewable only to City staff. As part of on-going 
maintenance and upkeep, the City should complete 
the repairs listed in this data, and once complete, 
should update the GIS data accordingly.

Recommendation #5 - 
Soft Recommendations for Improving the  
Connection Across University Boulevard:

Although the crossing at Quincy Avenue and University 
Boulevard is currently in safe and usable condition, 
there have been past studies on how to improve this 
crossing based on the amount of pedestrian, and 
especially youth traffic at the intersection. Because the 
City is already involved in discussions and potential 
plans for improvements at the intersection, this project 
will only make a series of 'soft' recommendations. 
These recommendations are in line with past and 
current discussions/studies, and should be taken as 
suggestions more than recommendations. The soft 
recommendations for this intersection are:

• Improve curb ramps. The existing curb ramps 
do have a certain amount of cracking and 
damage.

• Improve the crosswalk paint. The existing 
crosswalk paint does have fading from the large 
amount of vehicular and pedestrian traffic. 
Because this intersection is directly adjacent to 
the Village Center area, Cherry Hills Elementary 
School, and St. Mary's Academy, there is an 
opportunity to create a fun themed crosswalk 
that relates to the Cherry Hills community, and 
the surrounding schools.

Another option is to create a curved crosswalk to 
create wider pedestrian access to the crossings. 
This can be implemented only on one of the 
streets, or both streets.

• As the John Meade Park/Alan Hutto Memorial 
Commons design continues to evolve, there 
should be an emphasis on creating safer 
and stronger connections to the crossing at 
University Avenue. Consideration should also 
be given to how the Park design can improve 
pedestrians crossing Quincy Avenue to Cherry 
Hills Elementary, as well as vehicular traffic for 
school drop-offs.

• The overpass/underpass options at this 
intersection, as well as other nearby locations, 
should continue to be researched and evaluated 
based on the community needs.

Curved Crosswalk Example



21 Chapter IV: Legal Report

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Legal Document Report Introduction

Easement and rights-of-way information for the City’s 
trail system were documented and organized within 
the “Cherry Hills Village Easement Book” with a final 
revision date of January 18, 2000.  The City notes that 
it received this book from the South Suburban Parks 
and Recreation district in 2000.  The book contains a 
summary of the City’s land rights for its recreational 
amenities and includes subdivision names, description 
of how the rights were granted and the public 
recording information. The City provided this book to 
Stanley Consultants together with PDF files for each 
plat and several additional easement documents not 
referenced in the book.

Stanley Consultants was tasked to review the easement 
book to verify its completeness and accuracy. This 
required reviewing each item noted in the book and 
searching for any subdivision plats and easement 
documents that might exist outside of the existing 
easement book. This information along with high 
resolution aerial photos and the Arapahoe County 
Assessor, Clerk and Recorder and GIS mapping 
websites were used as resources. There were no field 
observations made by Stanley’s land rights group to 
verify the physical location of trails as they relate the 
boundaries of trail easements. 

A new list was created (Appendix A - Table A) similar 
to the existing easement book format to summarize 
our findings of new easements and notable items of 
the existing book that were found.  If a new plat was 
found that was not part of the original easement book 
its recording date and book and page information is 
listed. 

All easements and right-of-way documents were 
linked to the City’s new GIS mapping system for easy 
identification. The user can select segments of the 
existing trail or unimproved right-of-way within the 
GIS map.

Right-of-Way Document Review

Review of Existing Information:

The subdivision plats provided by the City were 
printed and reviewed against the easement book. 
There were approximately 220 plats listed in the 
book for review. The existing easement book was 
reviewed in detail by verifying each line item noted. 
We reviewed the comments in the “Description of 
Transfer of Recreational Amenities” column to verify 
if it matched.  No major discrepancies were found and 
the information in the book is accurate up to the last 
dated revision of January 18, 2000. 

Vacations:

There is a list of ten documents noted as vacations 
on Page 31 of the original easement book. Each of 
the documents were reviewed to identify where each 
vacation was located and if trails existed in the vacation 
areas. We determined that the vacations did not affect 
any of the existing trails system nor left any segment 
of trail outside of easement limits. 

Review of New Information:

There were approximately 65 plats that were 
provided to us by the City that were not referenced 
in the original easement book.  The majority of the 
plats were recorded after the last revised date of the 
easement book (January 18, 2000) and some of them 
do contain new information regarding the recreational 
trail amenities and easements. These are listed in 
Appendix A - Table A.  

Several of the plats were lot line adjustments, address 
maps, annexations or preliminary plats which are not 
documents that typically dedicate or grant easements.  
These were also reviewed and added to Appendix A - 
Table A, but can be disregarded as no new easements 
were found. 

The City also provided approximately 48 PDF files that 
were miscellaneous documents separate from the 
plats.  We reviewed each of these documents to see 
of any affected the recreational trail system and found 
several of the documents did apply. These are either 
grants of new easements or vacation of easements. 
These documents are listed in Appendix A - Table B. 

CHAPTER IV: LEGAL DOCUMENT REPORT



Chapter IV: Legal Report 22

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

The following is a summary of the notable items that 
were found:

1. Todd’s Estates appears to have a portion trail 
running along the southerly boundary of Lots 1 
thru 3 within a 25’ Private Roadway Easement.

2. Wilwell Acres appears to have a portion of trail 
running along the northerly boundary of Lots 1 
and 2. There is no trail easement referenced on 
the plat, we are assuming the trail is located in the 
vacated E. Kenyon Avenue ROW or the 15’ Private 
Road and Utility Easement.

3. Cherry Hills Park I 3rd Amendment notes a 
realignment of the recreational trail easement 
over Lots 4,5,12,13,19,20,24,25 and Tracts D & E of 
Cherry Hills Park I. The recreational trail easement 
shall be delineated by a series of bollards of 
uniform design set approximately 40' on center 
with no bollards being taller than 2'8" above 
grade. Landscape materials in the 5' wide HOA 
landscaping easement shall not exceed 5' high or 
permit vegetation to grow over overlap. See plat 
for additional details.

4. There are numerous sections of trail that appear 
to be located in public road right-of-way. We 
designated each portion to the nearest subdivision 
and noted them in Appendix A - Table A.

5. There were several unimproved trail easements 
found in multiple locations where no trail appears 
to exist.  These are shown on the GIS map on a 
separate layer named “Unclaimed Easement.” The 
easements exist in the following subdivisions:

• Littleridge Subdivision
• Verona Place
• The Buell Mansion Subdivision Filing # 3
• Crescent Gardens Minor Subdivision
• Cherrys Broadway Gardens
• Petry-Garnsey
• George W. Calkins Trust
• Miller Estates
• Cantitoe
• Lake Cantitoe
• Cherrymoor South
• Cherry Hills Farm Filing No. 1
• Glenmoor of Cherry Hills
• Holly Meadows
• Olson Subdivision
• Tamblyn Subdivision
• Charlou Valley

Search for Missing Documents

After review of the original easement book, plats 
and documents provided by the City we performed 
a search to verify if any other documents exist that 
may provide additional easements.  We performed a 
search using Arapahoe County Clerk and Recorder’s 
public records search engine to look for additional 
documents. We searched in the few areas where a trail 
exists but no easement was found and did not return 
any results. We also searched subdivisions that were 
recorded after January 18, 2000 and checked them 
against our list and believe there is not any additional 
information. Review of the subdivision plats that were 
provided appear to cover the entire City limits which 
leads us to conclude there are most likely no other 
subdivisions available at this time.

Screenshot of Webmap showing Easements (Blue) and Rights-of-Way (Yellow)



23 Chapter V: GIS Mapping System

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

GIS Mapping Introduction + Uses

At the beginning of this project, the City did have some 
internal GIS databases, but the majority of the GIS data 
available was owned by Arapahoe County. 

This project created a new series of databases based 
on Arapahoe County data, field collected data, legal 
document research, and planning data created as a 
result of this project. The intended uses of this data is 
two-fold:

• Public Use - Some of the data is intended for 
public use to increase awareness of the trail 
system and its amenities. This data also allows 
users easier access to legal documents such as 
plats. All of these documents were previously 
available to the public via the Arapahoe County 
Assessor's office, however they are now available 
via a quicker and more efficient process.

• City Staff Use - All of the field collected data, 
as well as detailed information on the legal 
document research is now available to City Staff 
through the GIS database and Webmap. One 
intended use is for City staff to quickly and easily 
update databases information pertaining to trail 
repairs, as they complete the repairs.

GIS Data

Once the consultant team gathered the City collected 
GPS/GIS data, the data was then organized and 
analyzed for use in the project geodatabase. The 
trails data did need to be converted to polyline data. 
The City staff completed this by utilizing the existing 
Arapahoe County GIS polyline data for trails, and 
joining attributes from the field collected point data.

With the trails data converted to polylines, the legal 
documents could be linked. Legal documents were 
attached via the following links:

• Trail polyline linked to PDF Legal Reports
• Subdivision polygon linked to PDF Legal 
Reports

In order to graphically display the network of easements 
and ROWs, easement and ROW buffers were created 
by offsetting trail centerlines (provided by Arapahoe 
County) the appropriate easement/ROW width. Trail 
polylines were given attributes defining easement/
ROW width, type and notes.

The consultant team created 3 new shapefiles in order 
for the Webmap to more closely resemble the existing 
Parks and Trails Map. These shapefiles are:

• Land Uses - This file depicts the Cherry Hills 
Village Parks, the High Line Canal, Churches, 
Schools, and Country Club/HOA Open Spaces.
• Trailheads/Parking - This file shows approximate 
locations of trailheads/parking areas based on 
the original Parks and Trails Map.
• Entry Features - This file shows approximate 
locations and notes for entry features owned by 
the City. This data was created based on existing 
City data.

All project GIS data was compiled into a single 
geodatabase containing four feature datasets:

• Base_Layers: Contains layers such as Parcels, 
Subdivisions, Land Uses, Streams, Lakes, etc.
• City_Features: Contains City collected point 
data on structures, vegetation, obstructions, 
bollards, etc.
• Trail_Features: Contains Trail polylines, 
Trailheads/Parking, bridges, etc.
• Trail_Easements: Contains easement and ROW 
buffers, HOA/City Recreation Tracts, Unused 
Easements, etc.

CHAPTER V: GIS MAPPING SYSTEM

Map Book showing Legal Research Mark-Ups



Chapter V: GIS Mapping System 24

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Webmap Platform

In addition to created an offline GIS database for the City staff to utilize, this project was also tasked with 
providing public access to records through interaction with the City's website. This was accomplished by 
creating an interactive Webmap application. This allows City staff to view all uploaded data, and the public to 
view certain data. Below is a full list of the data uploaded to the Webmap. Items in red italics with an asterisk are 
for City Staff viewing only (non-public data).

• Street Labels
• Trails Labels
• Entry Features
• Trailheads/Parking
• Wildlife Spotting
• Bridges
• Trails
• Unused Easement Documents*
• Unused Easements*
• City/HOA Recreation Tracts*
• Easements*
• Rights-of-Way*
• PLSS Grid
• Utility Boxes*
• Poles*
• Telephone Pole*
• Fire Hydrant*
• Vegetation Trim*
• Weeds*
• Trees*
• Grass Seed Needed*
• Sign - Dog Owner*
• Sign - No Motor Vehicles*

• Sign - Natural Feature*
• Sign - Informational*
• Trail Markers*
• Bollard*
• Trash Can*
• Bench*
• Ruts in Trail*
• Drainage*
• Storm Sewer*
• View of Trail*
• Misc. Features*
• Encroachments*
• Streams
• Lakes
• Land Uses
• Subdivisions
• Assessor Parcels
• City Limits
• Aerial Imagery
• CHV TrailSegPlats (this is the table 
that holds all linked legal documents, 
not a graphically visible layer)

In order to separate the public vs. City layers, three Webmap applications were created:

• City Staff Webmap - For view and use by City staff only. This Webmap includes all of the GIS data 
collected and created for the project.

• Parks and Trails Webmap - This map is for public use and does not include data such as the Easement 
and ROW buffers, Unclaimed Easements, Trail Repairs (Ruts in Trail), Trail Markers, or other Obstructions. 
This map will be linked on the City's Parks and Recreation webpage and will also be linked through the QR 
code on the foldable Parks and Trails map.

• Community Development Webmap - This map is for public use and contains the same data as the 
Parks and Trails Webmap. The one difference is that it will show the Subdivisions layer (with linked legal 
documents) by default. This map will be linked on the City's Community Development webpage with the 
intent of providing developers easier access to relevant plats and easement documents.



City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Chapter V: GIS Mapping System25

Basic Use + Maintenance Instructions

At right is a view of the Webmap application. Below is 
a list of the tools called out on the screenshot:

Zoom/Navigation Controls - Allows users to 
zoom in or out. Home button will bring the 
view back to the original extents (view of full 
City). The crosshairs button will locate the user 
using the GPS of the user's device (i.e. GPS 
enabled smartphone).

Search Bar - Allows users to search the map 
by landmark, CHV Trail Number, or Assessor 
Parcel Number.

Wildlife Reporting Button - Allows users to 
report wildlife spotting incidents with notes 
and a picture. Submitted reports must be 
approved by City staff before it is published to 
the public map. 

In the City Staff map, this is replaced by the Edit 
Button, which allows City Staff to edit certain 
features. The Edit Button symbol is:

Measure Button - Allows users to measure 
distances and areas on the map.

Information Button - Displays the map name 
and last edit date

Draw Button - Allows users to draw shapes on 
the map. These shapes will not be saved to the 
map databases.

Layer Slider Button - Allows users to have a 
visual slider control for a selected layer.

Charts - Displays 2 chart types; length of 
trails by trail type and length of trails by trail 
condition. These charts can be refreshed based 
upon the current view extents.

Basemap - Users can select other basemaps; 
default is set to aerial imagery without labels.

Legend - Displays a legend of layers currently 
turned on.

Layers - Allows users to turn layers on and off.

Bookmarks - Allows users to set custom views. Bookmarks are unique to a users device 
and will not be saved to the actual Webmap data.

Attribute Table - Clicking will expand the attribute tables for layers in the Webmap.

Screenshot View of Online Webmap Application

1

1
3 4 5 6 7

2

8 9

2

3

4
5

8

6

7

9

12

10

11

121110

13

13



City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Chapter V: GIS Mapping System 26

In order to make simple edits, such as adding, editing, 
or removing notes about a repair point, follow these 
steps:

1� Click the Edit Button ( A ).

2� In order to add/create features, select the layer 
you wish to edit in the main window.

• Next, click on the  map where you 
would like to place the new feature.
• A pop-up will appear to enter attribute 
information such as notes or dimensions.
• The feature is now created and saved.

3� If you wish to edit existing features, simply use 
the select tools ( 1 ) to select the item on the map.

4� Use the buttons as the bottom of the Edit 
Window (shown at right) to make appropriate 
edits. These buttons are:

Select Features Tools

Clear Selection

Edit Attributes

Create Feature

Delete Feature

Cut Feature

Union (Join) Feature

Reshape Feature (Edit Vertices)

Undo

Redo

• If an item is selected, it will be shown as a red dot. Once highlighted, edits can be made. For 
example, to delete a point, select it (click 1 , then draw a rectangle over the object), then click 
Delete Feature ( 5 ).

• To change the notes on an item, select it (click 1 , then draw a rectangle over the object), then 
click Edit Attributes ( 3 ). The user can then edit the notes and attributes of the item.

5� Edits take affect immediately, and there is no 'Save' function or command required.

Screenshot View of Edit Window in Webmap

Any updates done to the online Webmap will not be reflected in the City's offline ArcGIS Desktop data. If 
changes are made to the online Webmap, these data layers should be exported and joined with the City's 
offline files to ensure both databases are current and up to date. This join/update maintenance can be done on 
a scheduled basis, for example once a month or once every six months. The process can be completed by City 
staff or contracted to an outside consultant. On-going maintenance of the Webmap is discussed in more detail 
in Chapter VI.

1

A

4 9

6

2 5

7 83

10

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10



27 Chapter VI: Ongoing Maintenance

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Costs related to this project are split into two categories: Project Recommendation Costs, and GIS Maintenance 
Costs. Project Recommendation Costs deal directly with the installation of recommendations the Trails Plan 
makes, and GIS Maintenance costs deal with online storage and database upkeep costs related to the Webmap 
application.

Project Recommendation Costs

One of the goals of this project is to create realistic recommendations for implementation based on cost. Below 
is a list of all five project recommendations and an explanation of the associated costs. A detailed spreadsheet 
of the cost estimates is provided below.

• Establish Trail Design Guidelines: Costs were not estimated for this recommendation because the 
completion of general repairs and maintenance/up-keep as noted in the CHV Trails Inventory of Existing 
Conditions (Appendix H) is all that is required for the existing trails to meet these design guidelines.

• Further Research Potential Uses for Unused Easements: There are no direct costs for this recommendation. 
City staff and the PTRC will research and evaluate potential uses for the unused easements on a case-by-
case basis.

• Improve Signage and Trail Network Identity: Material and installation costs are estimated at approximately 
$6,000. This includes 14 map dispenser kiosks. General repairs for fixing broken trail markers is not included.

• General Repairs based on Trails Inventory: Costs for these general repairs are not included as these are 
generally minor repairs that are included as part of the City's on-going maintenance costs. The main cost 
for this is identifying the needed repairs, which was done as part of this project.

• Soft Recommendations for University Crossing: Because these are soft recommendations, no cost 
estimates are included for these.

CHAPTER VI: MAINTENANCE COSTS

Cherry Hills Village Trails Plan Cost Estimates

Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total
Recommendation #3 - Trail Map Dispensers
Trail Map Dispensers on Existing Pet Pick-Up Stations 3 EA $350.00 $1,050.00
Trail Map Dispensers on New Poles 7 EA $350.00 $2,450.00
Extra Trail Map Dispensers to keep on hand for future 
locations or replacements 4 EA $350.00 $1,400.00

20% Contingency $980.00
Total (Including Contingency) $5,880.00



Chapter VI: Ongoing Maintenance 28

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

GIS Maintenance Costs

Although providing public access to GIS data through an online Webmap is a great interactive tool, there are 
costs associated with it. The on-going maintenance costs have been broken into two categories.

Online Storage Costs

The Webmap application created for this project is a Light WebGIS product, meaning it is cloud based and the 
data is served on ESRI's (makers of ArcGIS) cloud servers. ESRI does charge for this storage at a rate of 2.4 credits 
per 10MB stored per month. 

To keep the Webmap active, the City of Cherry Hills Village needs an active ArcGIS Online account, and service 
credits to pay for the storage. The City already has active ArcGIS Online accounts, and plans on continuing 
this 'maintenance' subscription service. Their current subscription includes 2,500 service credits per year, and 
additional credits can be purchased for $100 per 1,000 credits. In the interest of estimating maximum possible 
costs, this estimate assumes the City will use the 2,500 provided credits for other uses. If we use this assumption, 
and the City will need to purchase service credits for the Trails Webmap, it will cost approximately $150-$250 
per year in service credits. The size and number of Wildlife Spotting incidents will influence this number, and to 
again estimate maximum possible costs, this Trails Plan proposes an estimate of $500 per year for the storage 
costs of maintaining the Webmap.

Updating Databases

As conditions change in reality, the City will need to update the GIS data in the Webmap. These changes could 
include changes to repairs needed, trail conditions, parcels, or City Parks. The City will need to decide how often 
these different data types should be updated. They can update certain features on an as-needed basis, or they 
can schedule regular updates to some or all of the data layers.

These updates can be completed by City staff, contracted to outside consultants, or a combination. The Webmap 
has been created so that simple edits to certain data layers can be made easily by City staff (see Chapter V) 
within the Webmap. However, it should be noted that any updates done to the online Webmap will not be 
reflected in the City's offline ArcGIS Desktop data. If changes are made to the online Webmap, these data layers 
should be exported and joined with the City's offline files to ensure both databases are current and up to date. 
As with all other database updates, this join/update maintenance can be done on a scheduled basis, or on an 
as-needed basis.



29 Appendix A: Updated Easement Book

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

APPENDIX A: UPDATED EASEMENT BOOK
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s V
ill

ag
e 

Ea
se

m
en

t B
oo

k 
2

Ta
bl

e 
A

St
an

le
y 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s,

 In
c.

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 9
De

ce
m

be
r 2

2,
 2

01
5

Su
bd

iv
is

io
n 

N
am

e
Re

co
rd

in
g 

Da
te

Bo
ok

 &
 P

ag
e

Es
m

t. 
W

id
th

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 T
ra

il 
&

 E
as

em
en

t

Al
lis

 S
ub

di
vi

sio
n

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 L

yn
n 

Ro
ad

 6
0'

 R
.O

.W
.

Be
ck

's 
Su

bd
iv

isi
on

6/
11

/2
00

1
19

9-
15

10
' 

Br
id

al
 E

as
em

en
t-

O
n 

Pl
at

Be
ck

's 
Su

bd
iv

isi
on

6/
11

/2
00

1
19

9-
15

4'
N

on
-m

ot
or

ize
d 

Re
cr

ea
tio

na
l U

se
 E

as
em

en
t-

O
n 

Pl
at

Be
ck

's 
Su

bd
iv

isi
on

6/
11

/2
00

1
19

9-
15

8'
Bi

cy
cl

e 
Ea

se
m

en
t-

O
n 

Pl
at

-n
o 

Ea
se

m
en

t D
oc

um
en

ts
Be

ck
's 

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
6/

11
/2

00
1

19
9-

15
30

' 
De

di
ca

te
d 

R.
O

.W
.-O

n 
Pl

at
Be

ck
's 

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
.p

df
6/

11
/2

00
1

19
9-

15
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Be
th

an
y 

Lu
th

er
an

 P
ro

pe
rt

ie
s,

 A
m

en
dm

en
t N

o.
 1

.p
df

2/
26

/2
00

2
21

5-
66

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
Bu

el
l M

an
sio

n 
Su

bd
iv

isi
on

 (T
he

), 
1s

t A
m

en
dm

en
t.p

df
11

/1
0/

19
99

17
0-

36
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Bu
el

l M
an

sio
n 

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
 F

ili
ng

 2
 (T

he
).p

df
8/

12
/2

00
3

24
6-

57
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Bu
el

l M
an

sio
n 

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
 F

ili
ng

 3
 (T

he
).p

df
4/

5/
20

05
28

5-
13

1
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Bu
el

l M
an

sio
n 

Su
bd

iv
iso

in
 F

ili
ng

 4
 (T

he
).p

df
9/

7/
20

07
34

8-
22

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts

Ca
m

en
isc

h 
Ga

rd
en

s
5/

28
/1

90
9

As
su

m
e 

tr
ai

l i
s i

n 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

tw
o 

th
ird

s o
f S

. G
ilp

in
 S

t. 
40

'  
R.

O
.W

. 
Ca

m
en

isc
h 

Ga
rd

en
s 2

nd
 F

ili
ng

5/
12

/1
99

3
10

8-
47

As
su

m
e 

tr
ai

l i
s i

n 
Ha

m
pd

en
 A

ve
. 1

00
' R

.O
.W

.

Ca
m

en
isc

h 
Ga

rd
en

s 2
nd

 F
ili

ng
As

su
m

e 
tr

ai
l i

s i
n 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
on

e 
th

ird
 o

f S
. G

ilp
in

 S
t. 

40
'  

R.
O

.W
.

Ca
nt

ito
e

3/
5/

19
64

18
-9

20
' 

Br
id

le
 P

at
h 

&
 P

ub
lic

 U
til

ity
 E

as
em

en
t o

n 
Pl

at
-n

o 
tr

ai
ls-

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 S

. H
ol

ly
 S

t. 
60

' R
.O

.W
. a

nd
 E

. U
ni

on
 

La
ne

 6
0'

 R
.O

.W
.

Ca
rm

el
 L

an
e 

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 S
. U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 B
lv

d.
 9

0'
 

R.
O

.W
.

Ca
rm

el
 L

an
e 

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 E
. Q

ui
nc

y 
Av

e.
 6

0'
 R

.O
.W

. 
an

d 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 B
lv

d.
 9

0'
 R

.O
.W

.
Ca

tt
ai

l M
ea

do
w

s S
ub

di
vi

sio
n 

Fi
lin

g 
2

9/
7/

20
00

18
5-

41
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Ch
ar

lo
u 

At
 C

he
rr

y 
Hi

lls
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 C
ha

rlo
u 

Cr
. 5

0'
 R

.O
.W

. 

Ch
ar

lo
u 

Pa
rk

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 E

l C
am

in
o 

Dr
. 6

0'
 R

.O
.W

.
Ch

ar
lo

u 
Va

lle
y

8/
27

/1
96

9
20

-5
10

'
Pu

bl
ic

 B
rid

le
 E

sm
t-

O
n 

Pl
at

-N
o 

Tr
ai

l
Ch

ar
lo

u 
Va

lle
y

8/
27

/1
96

9
20

-5
8'

Pu
bl

ic
 B

rid
le

 E
sm

t-
O

n 
Pl

at
-N

o 
Tr

ai
l

Ch
au

m
on

t i
n 

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 C

ha
rlo

u 
Cr

. 5
0'

 R
.O

.W
. a

nd
 

Ea
st

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 C

ha
rlo

u 
Dr

. 3
0'

 R
.O

.W
.

Ch
er

ry
 C

re
ek

 S
ch

oo
l

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 S

. U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 B

lv
d.

 9
0'

 
R.

O
.W

.

Ch
er

ry
 C

re
ek

 S
ch

oo
l

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 S

. U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 B

lv
d.

 9
0'

 
R.

O
.W

.
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s A
cr

es
12

/9
/1

95
4

11
-6

3
As

su
m

e 
tr

ai
l i

s i
n 

Ke
ny

on
 A

ve
nu

e 
R.

O
.W

.
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s A
cr

es
12

/9
/1

95
4

11
-6

3
As

su
m

e 
tr

ai
l i

s i
n 

M
ar

tin
 L

an
e 

R.
O

.W
.

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s A

nn
ex

As
su

m
e 

tr
ai

l i
s i

n 
M

id
dl

e 
Ro

ad
 R

.O
.W

. a
nd

 C
he

rr
y 

La
nd

 D
r. 

R.
O

.W
.

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s A

nn
ex

 L
ot

 C
on

so
lid

at
io

n.
pd

f
3/

14
/2

01
4

44
6-

61
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts



Appendix A: Updated Easement Book 30

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s V

ill
ag

e 
Ea

se
m

en
t B

oo
k 

2
Ta

bl
e 

A

St
an

le
y 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s,

 In
c.

Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 9
De

ce
m

be
r 2

2,
 2

01
5

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s E

as
t

As
su

m
e 

tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 O
xf

or
d 

Av
e.

 6
0'

 R
.O

.W
.

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s E

as
t

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 H

ud
so

n 
Pk

w
y.

 6
0'

 R
.O

.W
.

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s E

as
t -

 T
hi

rd
 F

ili
ng

, L
ot

 5
, B

lo
ck

 6
 a

nd
 L

ot
 7

, b
lo

ck
 6

, M
in

or
 L

ot
 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
t.p

df
5/

7/
20

04
26

3-
45

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s E

st
at

es
7/

27
/1

97
7

31
-7

9
16

'
Br

id
le

 P
at

h-
O

n 
Pl

at
-n

o 
tr

ai
ls-

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 
in

 S
. F

ra
nk

lin
 S

t. 
60

' R
.O

.W
.

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s E

st
at

es
 S

tr
ee

t A
dd

re
ss

es
.p

df
N

A
N

on
e

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s F

ar
m

 F
ili

ng
 N

o.
 1

8/
24

/1
97

8
35

-4
2 

&
 4

3
Pa

rc
el

s "
A"

, 
"D

",
 "E

"
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s F
ar

m
 H

O
A-

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l l

oc
at

ed
 in

 th
es

e 
Pa

rc
el

s
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s F
ar

m
 F

ili
ng

 N
o.

 1
8/

24
/1

97
8

35
-4

2 
&

 4
3

Pa
rc

el
 "B

"
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s F
ar

m
 H

O
A-

O
n 

Pl
at

-N
o 

tr
ai

l
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s F
ar

m
 F

ili
ng

 N
o.

 1
8/

24
/1

97
8

35
-4

2 
&

 4
3

Pa
rc

el
 "C

"
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s F
ar

m
 H

O
A-

O
n 

Pl
at

-N
o 

tr
ai

l

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s F

ar
m

 F
ili

ng
 N

o.
 2

5/
21

/1
97

9
29

-1
 &

 2
Pa

rc
el

 "B
"

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s F

ar
m

 H
O

A-
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l l
oc

at
ed

 in
 th

is 
Pa

rc
el

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s F

ar
m

 F
ili

ng
 N

o.
 2

5/
21

/1
97

9
29

-1
 &

 2
Pa

rc
el

s "
A"

 
an

d 
"C

"
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s F
ar

m
 H

O
A-

O
n 

Pl
at

-N
o 

tr
ai

l

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s F

ar
m

 F
ili

ng
 N

o.
 2

5/
21

/1
97

9
29

-1
 &

 2
Pa

rc
el

s "
B"

78
' o

f L
ot

s a
lo

ng
 E

. B
el

le
vi

ew
 A

ve
. R

es
er

ve
d 

fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
w

id
en

in
g 

- A
ss

um
e 

tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 E
. B

el
le

vi
ew

 A
ve

. R
.O

.W
.

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s F

ar
m

 S
ub

di
vi

sio
n 

Fi
lin

g 
N

o.
 1

, A
dd

re
ss

 M
ap

.p
df

N
A

N
on

e
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s M

ea
do

w
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s i

n 
Cl

ar
ks

on
 S

t. 
60

' R
.O

.W
. 

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s M

ea
do

w
 A

dd
re

ss
 M

ap
.p

df
N

A
N

on
e

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s N

or
th

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 S

ou
th

m
oo

r L
an

e 
60

' 
R.

O
.W

., 
E.

 P
rin

ce
to

n 
Av

e.
 5

0'
 R

.O
.W

. a
nd

 S
. I

vy
 L

an
e 

50
' R

.O
.W

.
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s N
or

th
 F

ili
ng

 N
o.

 O
ne

, A
dd

re
ss

 M
ap

.p
df

N
A

N
on

e
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s P

ar
k

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 S

. U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 B

lv
d.

 9
0'

 
R.

O
.W

.
CH

ER
RY

 H
IL

LS
 P

AR
K 

&
 C

AM
EN

IS
CH

 G
AR

DE
N

S 
M

IN
O

R 
LO

T 
LI

N
E 

AD
JU

ST
M

EN
T.

pd
f

12
/3

0/
20

13
44

3-
73

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s P
ar

k 
A 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Re
sid

en
tia

l C
om

m
un

ity
.p

df
N

A
N

on
e

su
rv

ey
 p

la
t d

oe
s n

ot
 g

ra
nt

 e
sm

ts
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s P
ar

k 
I -

 5
th

 A
m

en
dm

en
t, 

M
in

or
 S

ub
di

vi
sio

n.
pd

f
5/

1/
20

06
31

9-
1

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s P
ar

k 
I -

 L
ot

 C
on

so
lid

at
io

n,
 L

ot
s 1

 a
nd

 2
.p

df
9/

12
/2

00
6

32
8-

1
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s P

ar
k 

I 1
st

 A
m

en
dm

en
t.p

df
9/

21
/1

99
8

15
4-

26
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s P

ar
k 

I 2
nd

 A
m

en
dm

en
t.p

df
9/

21
/1

99
8

15
4-

27
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s P

ar
k 

I 3
rd

 A
m

en
dm

en
t.p

df
5/

25
/2

00
1

19
8-

15
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts



31 Appendix A: Updated Easement Book

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s V

ill
ag

e 
Ea

se
m

en
t B

oo
k 

2
Ta

bl
e 

A

St
an

le
y 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s,

 In
c.

Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 9
De

ce
m

be
r 2

2,
 2

01
5

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s P

ar
k 

I 3
rd

 A
m

en
dm

en
ts

5/
25

/2
00

1
19

8-
15

16
' &

 2
0'

 

A 
re

al
ig

nm
en

t o
f t

he
 re

cr
ea

tio
na

l t
ra

il 
ea

se
m

en
t o

ve
r L

ot
s 

4,
5,

12
,1

3,
19

,2
0,

24
,2

5 
an

d 
Tr

ac
ts

 D
 &

 E
 o

f C
he

rr
y 

Hi
lls

 P
ar

k 
I. 

Th
e 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l t

ra
il 

ea
se

m
en

t s
ha

ll 
be

 d
el

in
ea

te
d 

by
 a

 se
rie

s 
of

 b
ol

la
rd

s o
f u

ni
fo

rm
 d

es
ig

n 
se

t a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

40
' o

n 
ce

nt
er

 
w

ith
 n

o 
bo

lla
rd

s b
ei

ng
 ta

lle
r t

ha
n 

2'
8"

 a
bo

ve
 g

ra
de

. L
an

ds
ca

pe
 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
in

 th
e 

5'
 w

id
e 

HO
A 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

ea
se

m
en

t s
ha

ll 
no

t 
ex

ce
ed

 5
' h

ig
h 

or
 p

er
m

it 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

to
 g

ro
w

 o
ve

r o
ve

rla
p.

 S
ee

 
Pl

at
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s P
ar

k 
I 4

th
 A

m
en

dm
en

t, 
Lo

t C
on

so
lid

at
io

n.
pd

f
7/

23
/2

00
2

22
4-

1
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s P

ar
k 

I, 
Lo

t 8
 a

nd
 T

ra
ct

 A
, L

ee
_C

ou
nt

ry
 C

lu
b 

As
so

ci
at

es
, M

in
or

 
Lo

t A
dj

us
tm

en
t 2

.p
df

11
/5

/2
00

8
38

3-
30

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s P
ar

k 
I, 

Lo
t 8

 a
nd

 T
ra

ct
 A

, L
ee

_C
ou

nt
ry

 C
lu

b 
As

so
ci

at
es

, M
in

or
 

Lo
t A

dj
us

tm
en

t.p
df

3/
6/

20
07

33
5-

15
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s P

ar
k 

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 S
. U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 B
lv

d.
 9

0'
 

R.
O

.W
.

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s P

ar
k,

 L
ot

 1
3,

 B
lo

ck
 B

, M
in

or
 L

ot
 A

dj
us

tm
en

t.p
df

4/
25

/2
00

8
36

6-
66

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s R

an
ch

es
 A

m
en

dm
en

t N
o.

 2
 - 

M
in

or
 L

ot
 A

dj
us

tm
en

t.p
df

8/
30

/2
01

2
42

8-
1

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s R

an
ch

es
 S

ub
di

vi
sio

n
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 E
. B

el
le

vi
ew

 A
ve

. R
.O

.W
.

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s R

an
ch

es
 S

ub
di

vi
sio

n,
 A

m
en

dm
en

t N
o.

 1
, M

in
or

 L
ot

 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t.p
df

4/
25

/2
00

8
36

6-
65

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s R
an

ch
es

.p
df

3/
31

/2
00

6
31

6-
10

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s R
an

ch
o

4/
5/

19
48

8-
37

As
su

m
e 

tr
ai

l i
s i

n 
Ea

st
 3

0'
 o

f S
. C

la
rk

so
n 

St
. R

.O
.W

.
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s R
an

ch
o

4/
5/

19
48

8-
37

As
su

m
e 

tr
ai

l i
s i

n 
Em

er
so

n 
Ro

ad
 5

0'
 R

.O
.W

.

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s R

an
ch

o
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s i

n 
Cl

ar
ks

on
 S

t. 
60

' R
.O

.W
. ,

 E
m

er
so

n 
Ro

ad
 5

0'
 R

.O
.W

., 
an

d 
O

xf
or

d 
La

ne
 R

.O
.W

.
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s R
an

ch
o 

2n
d 

Am
en

dm
en

t F
ili

ng
 - 

M
in

or
 L

ot
 L

in
e 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
t 

N
o.

 1
.p

df
12

/1
9/

20
02

23
3-

28
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s R

an
ch

o 
3r

d 
Am

en
d.

9/
15

/1
94

9
9-

7
As

su
m

e 
tr

ai
l i

s i
n 

Ra
nc

ho
 R

oa
d 

R.
O

.W
.

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s S

ub
di

vi
sio

n
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 S
. U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 B
lv

d.
 9

0'
 

R.
O

.W
.

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s S

ub
di

vi
sio

n 
Fi

lin
g 

N
o.

 2
, M

in
or

 S
ub

di
vi

sio
n.

pd
f

8/
12

/2
00

3
24

6-
56

10
' a

nd
 2

0'
 R

ec
re

at
io

na
l T

ra
il 

Ea
se

m
en

t f
or

 n
on

-m
ot

or
ize

d 
us

e 
by

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 in

 a
n 

un
pa

ve
d 

su
rf

ac
e 

co
nd

iti
on

 si
m

ila
r t

o 
th

e 
ot

he
r p

ub
lic

 tr
ai

ls 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ci
ty

 o
f c

he
rr

y 
hi

lls
 v

ill
ag

e 
an

d 
fo

r u
se

 b
y 

ve
hi

cl
es

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 fo
r t

he
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 tr
ai

l 
ea

se
m

en
t b

y 
th

e 
ci

ty
 o

f i
ts

 c
on

tr
ac

to
rs

 
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s S
ub

di
vi

sio
n,

 L
ot

s 1
2 

&
 1

3,
 M

in
or

 L
ot

 A
dj

us
tm

en
t.p

df
2/

20
/2

00
7

33
5-

42
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s S

ub
di

vi
sio

n,
 R

ep
la

t o
f L

ot
 7

.p
df

N
A

N
A

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s S

ub
di

vi
sio

n,
 R

es
ub

di
vi

sio
n 

of
 N

o.
 5

 a
nd

 N
o.

 1
6 

Ly
nn

 R
oa

d.
pd

f
7/

23
/1

98
2

57
-5

2
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts



Appendix A: Updated Easement Book 32

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s V

ill
ag

e 
Ea

se
m

en
t B

oo
k 

2
Ta

bl
e 

A

St
an

le
y 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s,

 In
c.

Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 9
De

ce
m

be
r 2

2,
 2

01
5

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s V

ill
ag

e 
Ce

nt
er

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 M

ea
d 

La
ne

 6
0'

 R
.O

.W
.

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s V

ill
ag

e 
Ce

nt
er

 M
in

or
 S

ub
di

vi
sio

n
5/

11
/2

01
2

42
5-

18
 &

 1
9

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s V

ill
ag

e 
Ce

nt
er

 M
in

or
 S

ub
di

vi
sio

n 
Lo

t 1
 B

lo
ck

 1
.p

df
5/

11
/2

01
2

42
5-

18

25
' U

til
ity

, T
ra

il 
&

 D
ra

in
ag

e 
Ea

se
m

en
t d

ed
ic

at
ed

 fo
r n

on
-

m
ot

or
ize

d,
 re

cr
ea

tio
na

l u
se

 b
y 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 in

 th
e 

m
an

ne
r s

im
ila

r 
to

 to
 o

th
er

 p
ub

lic
 tr

ai
ls 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ci

ty
 o

f c
he

rr
y 

hi
lls

 
vi

lla
ge

 a
nd

 fo
r u

se
 b

y 
ve

hi
cl

es
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 fo

re
 th

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 tr
ai

l e
as

em
en

ts
 b

y 
th

e 
ci

ty
 o

r i
ts

 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s.
 

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s V

ill
ag

e 
Ce

nt
er

.p
df

9/
12

/2
00

5
29

9-
1

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l t

ra
ils

 sh
ow

n 
he

re
on

 fo
r n

on
-m

ot
or

ize
d 

us
e 

by
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 in
 th

e 
m

an
ne

r s
im

ila
r t

o 
to

 o
th

er
 p

ub
lic

 tr
ai

ls 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 
th

e 
ci

ty
 o

f c
he

rr
y 

hi
lls

 v
ill

ag
e 

an
d 

fo
r u

se
 b

y 
ve

hi
cl

es
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 fo

re
 th

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 tr
ai

l e
as

em
en

ts
 b

y 
th

e 
ci

ty
 o

r i
ts

 c
on

tr
ac

to
rs

. 
Ch

er
ry

 V
al

e 
Ac

re
s a

nd
 C

he
rr

y 
Va

le
 A

cr
es

 S
ec

on
d 

Fi
lin

g,
 V

ac
at

io
n 

M
ap

 o
f a

 
Po

rt
io

n 
of

.p
df

4/
20

/1
95

6
12

-7
3

Va
ca

tio
n 

M
ap

Ch
er

ry
 V

al
e 

Ac
re

s F
ili

ng
 N

o.
 F

iv
e.

pd
f

TB
D

TB
D

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
Ch

er
ry

 V
al

e 
Ac

re
s,

 V
ac

at
io

n 
M

ap
 o

f a
 P

or
tio

n 
of

.p
df

4/
20

/1
95

6
12

-7
3

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
Ch

er
ry

-M
oo

r A
cr

es
 L

ot
 C

on
so

lid
at

io
n 

Lo
t 1

 a
nd

 P
lo

t A
.p

df
5/

11
/2

01
2

42
5-

20
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Ch
er

ry
m

oo
r S

ou
th

5/
5/

19
70

21
-3

7
20

' 
U

til
ity

, D
ra

in
ag

e 
an

d 
Br

id
le

 P
at

h 
Ea

se
m

en
t

Ch
er

ry
m

oo
r S

ou
th

4/
14

/1
97

5
28

-3
2

16
'

Br
id

le
 P

at
h 

&
 U

til
ity

 E
sm

t.-
O

n 
Pl

at
-n

o 
tr

ai
ls

Ch
er

ry
rid

ge
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 S
. U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 B
lv

d.
 9

0'
 

R.
O

.W
.

Ch
er

ry
rid

ge
 F

ili
ng

 2
.p

df
4/

25
/2

00
1

19
6-

68
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Ch
er

ry
s B

ro
ad

w
ay

 G
ar

de
ns

1/
12

/2
01

2
Re

c.
 N

o.
 

D2
00

48
31

Ea
se

m
en

t f
or

 N
on

-m
ot

or
ize

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 T
ra

il-
no

t s
ho

w
n 

on
 P

la
t-

no
 

tr
ai

l o
n 

m
ap

.
Ch

er
ry

's 
Br

oa
dw

ay
 G

ar
de

ns
As

su
m

e 
tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 L

af
ay

et
te

 S
t. 

30
' R

.O
.W

.
Ch

er
ry

's 
Br

oa
dw

ay
 G

ar
de

ns
 L

ot
 C

on
so

lid
at

io
n 

of
 P

ar
ce

ls 
A 

an
d 

B 
an

d 
M

in
or

 L
ot

 A
dj

us
tm

en
t.p

df
3/

1/
20

12
42

2-
41

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts

Ch
er

ry
's 

Ga
rd

en
 R

ab
bi

t R
un

 S
ub

di
vi

sio
n.

pd
f

4/
3/

20
09

38
9-

38
Br

id
le

 P
at

h 
ea

se
m

en
t n

ot
ed

 o
n 

Pl
at

 fr
om

 o
rig

in
al

 R
ab

bi
t R

un
 

Su
bd

iv
sii

on
 b

ut
 n

o 
ne

w
 e

as
em

en
ts

.

Ch
er

ry
's 

Ga
rd

en
s

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
ns

 o
f t

ra
il 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 E

. T
uf

ts
 A

ve
. 3

0'
 R

.O
.W

., 
S.

 
Ra

ce
 S

t. 
30

' R
.O

.W
., 

E.
 R

ad
cl

iff
 A

ve
. R

.O
.W

., 
 a

nd
 S

. V
in

e 
W

ay
 

50
' R

.O
.W

.
Ch

er
ry

's 
Ga

rd
en

s V
ac

at
io

n 
of

 P
ar

t o
f.p

df
4/

21
/1

93
5

TB
D

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
Ch

er
ry

's 
Ga

rd
en

s,
 V

ac
at

io
n 

of
 P

ar
t o

f a
nd

 V
ac

at
io

n 
of

 S
tr

ee
ts

 in
 B

lo
ck

s 2
5-

26
-2

7.
pd

f
4/

21
/1

93
5

TB
D

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
Ch

er
ry

's 
Ga

rd
en

s.
pd

f

Cl
ar

k 
Co

lo
ny

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
ns

 o
f t

ra
il 

ar
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 U

ni
on

 A
ve

. R
.O

.W
., 

Ch
en

an
go

 A
ve

. 3
0'

 R
.O

.W
., 

Be
lle

vi
ew

 A
ve

. 6
0'

 R
.O

.W
., 

an
d 

S.
 

Ho
lly

 S
t. 

60
' R

.O
.W

.
Cl

ar
k 

Co
lo

ny
 L

ot
s 3

3-
36

, 4
5-

48
, 4

9-
52

, 6
1-

64
.p

df
8/

23
/1

90
6

N
on

e
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts



33 Appendix A: Updated Easement Book

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s V

ill
ag

e 
Ea

se
m

en
t B

oo
k 

2
Ta

bl
e 

A

St
an

le
y 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s,

 In
c.

Pa
ge

 6
 o

f 9
De

ce
m

be
r 2

2,
 2

01
5

Cl
ea

rv
ie

w
 F

ar
m

 L
ot

 C
on

so
lid

at
io

n 
Pl

at
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 S
. C

ol
or

ad
o 

Bl
vd

. 3
0'

 
R.

O
.W

.
Co

un
tr

y 
Ho

m
es

As
su

m
e 

tr
ai

l i
s i

n 
S.

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 B

lv
d.

 6
0'

 R
.O

.W
.

Co
un

tr
y 

Ho
m

es
, L

ot
 C

on
so

lid
at

io
n 

of
 T

ra
ct

 1
1.

pd
f

8/
27

/2
00

3
24

8-
19

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
Cr

es
ce

nt
 G

ar
de

ns
 M

in
or

 S
ub

di
vi

sio
n

9/
6/

20
07

34
8-

23
16

'
Tr

ai
l E

as
em

en
t d

ed
ic

at
ed

 o
n 

Pl
at

, n
o 

tr
ai

l e
xi

st
s.

 

De
nv

er
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 A
dd

iti
on

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 S

. C
ol

or
ad

o 
Bl

vd
. 3

0'
 

R.
O

.W
. a

nd
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 O
xf

or
d 

Pl
ac

e 
60

' 
R.

O
.W

.
De

vo
ns

hi
re

 H
ei

gh
ts

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s i
n 

Ha
m

pd
en

 A
ve

. 1
00

' R
.O

.W
.

Do
w

ni
ng

 W
ay

 A
cr

es
.p

df
6/

5/
19

91
10

4-
41

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts

DS
F 

#9
 T

ru
st

6/
5/

19
91

10
4-

41
16

.8
4'

 
Re

cr
ea

tio
na

l T
ra

il 
Ea

se
m

en
t o

n 
Pl

at
- E

xi
st

in
g 

tr
ai

l o
nl

y 
in

 w
es

t 
ha

lf 
of

 e
as

em
en

t. 
Ea

st
 h

al
f o

f e
as

em
en

t a
pp

ea
rs

 u
ni

m
pr

ov
ed

. 
DS

F_
#9

 T
ru

st
 S

ub
di

vi
sio

n.
pd

f
12

/1
2/

19
94

11
7-

44
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Du
nb

ar
to

n 
Ac

re
s

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 S

. E
l. 

Ca
m

in
o 

Dr
. 3

0'
 

R.
O

.W
.

Fa
irw

ay
 S

ub
di

vi
sio

n
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 E
. Q

ui
nc

y 
Av

e.
 6

0'
 R

.O
.W

. 
an

d 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 B
lv

d.
 9

0'
 R

.O
.W

.

Ge
or

ge
 W

. C
al

ki
ns

 S
ub

di
vi

sio
n.

pd
f

6/
22

/2
01

5
46

8-
26

 &
 2

7

de
di

ca
te

 to
 th

e 
ci

ty
 o

f c
he

rr
y 

hi
lls

 v
ill

ag
e 

fo
r p

ub
lic

 u
se

 th
e 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l t

ra
ils

 sh
ow

n 
he

ro
n 

as
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 la
nd

 
ea

se
m

en
t f

or
 n

on
-m

ot
or

ize
d 

us
e 

by
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 in
 th

e 
m

an
ne

r 
sim

ila
r t

o 
to

 o
th

er
 p

ub
lic

 tr
ai

ls 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ci
ty

 o
f c

he
rr

y 
hi

lls
 v

ill
ag

e 
an

d 
fo

r u
se

 b
y 

ve
hi

cl
es

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 fo
re

 th
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 tr

ai
l e

as
em

en
ts

 b
y 

th
e 

ci
ty

 o
r i

ts
 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s.

 
Ge

or
ge

 W
. C

al
ki

ns
 T

ru
st

6/
22

/2
01

5
46

8-
26

 &
 2

7
30

'
O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

e 
&

 P
ub

lic
 L

an
d 

Es
m

t.-
sh

ow
n 

on
 P

la
t-

no
 tr

ai
ls

Ge
or

ge
 W

. C
al

ki
ns

 T
ru

st
6/

22
/2

01
5

46
8-

26
 &

 2
7

25
'

O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e 

&
 P

ub
lic

 L
an

d 
Es

m
t.-

sh
ow

n 
on

 P
la

t-
no

 tr
ai

ls
Ge

or
ge

 W
. C

al
ki

ns
 T

ru
st

6/
22

/2
01

5
46

8-
26

 &
 2

7
20

'
O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

e 
&

 P
ub

lic
 L

an
d 

Es
m

t.-
sh

ow
n 

on
 P

la
t-

no
 tr

ai
l

Ge
or

ge
 W

. C
al

ki
ns

 T
ru

st
6/

22
/2

01
5

46
8-

26
 &

 2
7

Va
rie

s
O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

e 
&

 P
ub

lic
 L

an
d 

Es
m

t.-
sh

ow
n 

on
 P

la
t-

no
 tr

ai
ls

Gl
en

m
oo

r o
f C

he
rr

y 
Hi

lls
9/

12
/1

98
3

67
-3

8,
39

,4
0

As
su

m
e 

tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 S
. M

on
ro

e 
La

ne
 R

.O
.W

.
Gl

en
m

oo
r o

f C
he

rr
y 

Hi
lls

3/
2/

19
94

11
9-

62
Re

cr
ea

tio
n 

Es
m

t.-
O

n 
Pl

at
-N

o 
tr

ai
l

Gl
en

m
oo

r o
f C

he
rr

y 
Hi

lls
4/

9/
19

93
10

8-
8

Re
cr

ea
tio

n 
Es

m
t.-

O
n 

Pl
at

-N
o 

tr
ai

l
Gl

en
m

oo
r o

f C
he

rr
y 

Hi
lls

6/
2/

19
92

10
5-

39
Re

cr
ea

tio
n 

Es
m

t.-
O

n 
Pl

at
-N

o 
tr

ai
l

Gl
en

m
oo

r o
f C

he
rr

y 
Hi

lls
5/

7/
19

91
10

4-
30

Re
cr

ea
tio

n 
Es

m
t.-

O
n 

Pl
at

-N
o 

tr
ai

l
Gl

en
m

oo
r o

f C
he

rr
y 

Hi
lls

As
su

m
e 

tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 E
. B

el
le

vi
ew

 A
ve

. R
.O

.W
.

Gr
ud

is 
Su

bd
iv

isi
on

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 S

. H
ig

h 
St

. 3
0'

 R
.O

.W
.

Hi
gg

en
s S

ou
th

 B
ro

ad
w

ay
 H

ei
gh

ts
12

/1
/1

98
0

11
-6

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
. A

ss
um

e 
ex

ist
in

g 
tr

ai
l i

s i
n 

Ke
ny

on
 A

ve
 R

O
W

Hi
gg

in
s S

ou
th

 B
ro

ad
w

ay
 H

ei
gh

ts
 K

es
ic

ki
 M

in
or

 L
ot

 L
in

e 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t.p
df

11
/1

9/
20

09
39

8-
12

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
Hi

gh
lin

e 
M

ea
do

w
s i

n 
Ch

er
ry

 H
ill

s P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

.p
df

N
A

N
on

e
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
 

Hi
gh

lin
e 

M
ea

do
w

s i
n 

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s R

ep
lt 

of
 T

ra
ct

 D
.p

df
9/

30
/1

99
8

15
4-

20
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts



Appendix A: Updated Easement Book 34

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s V

ill
ag

e 
Ea

se
m

en
t B

oo
k 

2
Ta

bl
e 

A

St
an

le
y 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s,

 In
c.

Pa
ge

 7
 o

f 9
De

ce
m

be
r 2

2,
 2

01
5

Hi
gh

lin
e 

M
ea

do
w

s L
ot

 C
on

so
lid

at
io

n 
Lo

ts
 1

-5
.p

df
5/

7/
20

14
44

8-
53

16
'

16
' R

ec
re

at
io

na
l T

ra
il 

ea
se

m
en

t g
ra

nt
ed

 b
y 

do
cu

m
en

t r
ec

or
de

d 
at

  R
ec

ep
tio

ns
 N

o.
 A

91
24

07
3 

7/
30

/1
99

9.
 

Hi
gh

lin
e 

Pa
rk

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
ns

 o
f t

ra
il 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 E

. Q
ui

nc
y 

Av
e.

 6
0'

 R
.O

.W
. 

an
d 

S.
 D

ah
lia

 S
t. 

60
' R

.O
.W

.
Hi

gh
lin

e 
Pa

rk
 M

in
or

 L
ot

 L
in

e 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t.p
df

11
/2

3/
20

10
40

9-
45

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
Ho

lly
 M

ea
do

w
s

4/
27

/1
99

5
12

0-
59

16
'

Br
id

le
 P

at
h 

&
 U

til
ity

 E
sm

t. 
O

n 
Pl

at
-N

o 
Tr

ai
l

Hu
tc

hi
ns

on
 S

eg
el

ke
 P

ar
k

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 S

. U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 B

lv
d.

 9
0'

 
R.

O
.W

.
Hu

tc
hi

so
n 

- S
eg

el
ke

 P
ar

k 
M

in
or

 L
ot

 A
dj

us
tm

en
t.p

df
8/

28
/2

00
9

39
4-

73
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Ke
nt

 S
ch

oo
l

N
o 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n-

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 R

an
do

m
 

Ro
ad

 2
5'

 R
.O

.W
. a

nd
 S

. M
on

ro
e 

La
ne

 R
.O

.W
.

Ke
nt

 S
ch

oo
l

N
o 

Pl
at

. A
ss

um
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 E

. Q
ui

nc
y 

Av
e.

 6
0'

 
R.

O
.W

.

Ke
nt

 S
ch

oo
l

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 G

le
nm

oo
r D

r. 
30

' R
oa

dw
ay

 
Ea

se
m

en
t

Kl
ik

of
f S

ub
di

vi
sio

n
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 U
ni

on
 A

ve
. R

.O
.W

. a
nd

 S
. 

Fa
ifa

x 
St

. R
.O

.W
.

La
ke

 C
an

tit
oe

7/
1/

19
96

12
9-

61
20

'
Br

id
le

 P
at

h 
&

 P
ub

lic
 U

til
ity

 E
as

em
en

t o
n 

Pl
at

-n
o 

tr
ai

ls
La

ke
 C

an
tit

oe
7/

1/
19

96
12

9-
61

20
' 

Br
id

le
 P

at
h-

O
n 

Pl
at

-n
o 

tr
ai

ls

La
yt

on
 L

an
e

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 S

. C
la

rk
so

n 
St

. 6
0'

 R
.O

.W
.

La
yt

on
 L

an
e,

 M
in

or
 L

ot
 L

in
e 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
t.p

df
2/

13
/2

00
7

33
5-

40
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Le
vy

 S
ub

di
vi

sio
n.

pd
f

6/
14

/1
99

6
12

-2
8

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts

Li
tt

le
rid

ge
 S

ub
di

vi
sio

n
11

/1
8/

19
88

11
-1

5
15

'
So

ut
h 

15
' o

f B
rid

le
 P

at
h-

Ea
se

m
en

t s
ho

w
n 

on
 P

la
t b

ut
 n

o 
tr

ai
l 

ex
ist

s.
  U

ni
m

pr
ov

ed
 E

as
em

en
t

M
an

sf
ie

ld
 E

st
at

es
 S

ub
di

vi
sio

n 
Ex

ce
pt

io
n

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s i
n 

S.
 C

ol
or

ad
o 

Bl
vd

. 6
0'

 R
.O

.W
.

M
an

sf
ie

ld
 E

st
at

es
 S

ub
di

vi
sio

n 
Ex

em
pt

io
n.

pd
f

1/
28

/2
00

3
23

4-
63

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts

M
cC

lin
to

ck
 S

ub
di

vi
sio

n 
Am

en
de

d.
pd

f
5/

19
/1

99
2

10
5-

32
14

' B
rid

le
 P

at
h 

Ea
se

m
en

t -
 N

o 
de

di
ca

tio
n 

la
ng

ua
ge

 o
n 

pl
at

.
M

ill
er

 E
st

at
es

6/
23

/1
99

3
10

9-
8

4'
Pr

iv
at

e 
Br

id
le

 P
at

h 
Ea

se
m

en
t s

ho
w

n 
on

 P
la

t-
no

 tr
ai

ls

M
or

ro
ne

 E
st

at
es

2/
4/

19
94

11
2-

1 
&

 2
12

0'
x2

20
'

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Es

m
t. 

sh
ow

n 
on

 P
la

t-
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 E

. Q
ui

nc
y 

Av
e.

 6
0'

 R
.O

.W
.

O
 M

 T
 S

ub
di

vi
sio

n
7/

24
/1

98
4

77
-1

6
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

. A
ss

um
e 

tr
ai

l i
n 

in
 U

.S
. H

w
y 

85
 R

.O
.W

.
O

lso
n 

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
4/

6/
19

29
38

-2
4

16
'

U
til

ity
 &

 B
rid

le
 P

at
h 

Es
m

t.-
O

n 
Pl

at
-N

o 
Tr

ai
l

O
xf

or
d 

He
ig

ht
s a

t C
he

rr
y 

Hi
ll

As
su

m
e 

tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 O
xf

or
d 

Av
e.

 6
0'

 R
.O

.W
.

O
xf

or
d 

He
ig

ht
s,

 A
dd

re
ss

 M
ap

.p
df

N
A

N
on

e
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Pe
tr

y-
Ga

rn
se

y
2/

8/
19

79
37

-4
8

20
' &

 1
2.

5'
 

Br
id

le
 P

at
h 

Ea
se

m
en

t-
sh

ow
n 

on
 P

la
t, 

no
 tr

ai
ls 

Po
lic

hi
o

9/
13

/1
95

1
10

-1
6

20
'

Tr
ai

l s
ho

w
n 

on
 M

ap
, n

or
th

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
lin

e 
of

 P
lo

t 5
-e

as
em

en
t 

no
t o

n 
Pl

at

Pu
lla

ra
 A

cr
es

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 E

. B
el

le
vi

ew
 A

ve
. R

.O
.W

.
Sa

bo
 L

ot
 C

on
so

lid
at

io
n.

pd
f

9/
8/

20
04

27
1-

41
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Sm
ith

's 
Ga

rd
en

s
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 V
ist

a 
Rd

. 2
5'

 R
.O

.W
.



35 Appendix A: Updated Easement Book

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s V

ill
ag

e 
Ea

se
m

en
t B

oo
k 

2
Ta

bl
e 

A

St
an

le
y 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s,

 In
c.

Pa
ge

 8
 o

f 9
De

ce
m

be
r 2

2,
 2

01
5

So
ut

h 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 P
ar

k
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s i

n 
S.

 C
ol

or
ad

o 
Bl

vd
. 6

0'
 R

.O
.W

.

So
ut

h 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 P
la

ce
As

su
m

e 
tr

ai
l i

s i
n 

S.
 A

lb
io

n 
St

. R
.O

.W
. a

nd
 M

id
dl

e 
Ro

ad
 R

.O
.W

.
So

ut
h 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 P

la
ce

 A
nn

ex
, R

es
ub

 o
f B

lo
ck

 1
1 

an
d 

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s A

nn
ex

, 
Re

su
b 

of
 L

ot
s A

 a
nd

 K
, B

lo
ck

s 6
 a

nd
 7

.p
df

 (s
ee

 C
HV

_0
51

)
3/

2/
19

71
20

-8
5

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts

So
ut

hm
oo

r V
ist

a
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 H
ap

py
 C

an
yo

n 
Ro

ad
 4

0'
 

R.
O

.W
. a

nd
 S

ou
th

m
oo

r L
an

e 
60

' R
.O

.W

St
. G

ab
rie

ls 
Co

m
m

on
s

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 E

. Q
ui

nc
y 

Av
e.

 6
0'

 R
.O

.W
. 

an
d 

Ch
ar

lo
u 

Cr
. 5

0'
 R

.O
.W

.

St
. M

ar
y'

s A
ca

de
m

y
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 B

lv
d.

 9
0'

 R
.O

.W
.

Sw
as

tik
a 

Ac
re

s #
1

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 S

. C
la

rk
so

n 
St

. 6
0'

 R
.O

.W
., 

La
fa

ye
tt

e 
St

. 6
0'

 R
.O

.W
. ,

an
d 

S.
 F

ra
nk

lin
 S

t. 
60

' R
.O

.W
.

Sw
as

tik
a 

Ac
re

s #
2

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 E

. B
el

le
vi

ew
 A

ve
. R

.O
.W

. 
Ta

m
bl

yn
 S

ub
di

vi
sio

n
3/

10
/1

98
0

44
-2

1
16

'
Br

id
le

 P
at

h-
O

n 
Pl

at
-N

o 
Tr

ai
l

Th
e 

Bu
el

l M
an

sio
n 

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
 F

ili
ng

 N
o.

 3
 

4/
5/

20
05

28
5-

13
1

16
'

U
til

ity
, b

rid
le

, d
ay

lig
ht

 n
on

-v
eh

ic
ul

ar
 p

ed
. E

sm
t. 

Sh
ow

n 
on

 P
la

t, 
bu

t n
o 

tr
ai

l e
xi

st
s.

Th
om

as
 - 

Do
w

ni
ng

 S
tr

ee
t F

ou
nd

at
io

n 
Su

bd
iv

isi
on

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

Pl
at

.p
df

10
/2

3/
19

87
96

-3
8

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts

To
dd

's 
Es

ta
te

s
6/

28
/1

96
5

18
-5

8
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 S
. U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 B
lv

d.
 9

0'
 

R.
O

.W
.-p

or
tio

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 2
5'

 P
riv

at
e 

Ro
ad

w
ay

 E
sm

t.
Tu

ft
s F

ie
ld

 M
in

or
 L

ot
 A

dj
us

tm
en

t.p
df

3/
18

/2
00

5
28

4-
1

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts

U
ni

co
rn

 M
ea

do
w

s
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 H
ud

so
n 

Pk
w

y.
 6

0'
 R

.O
.W

.

U
np

la
tt

ed
 C

ity
 a

nd
 C

ou
nt

y 
of

 D
en

ve
r

N
o 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n-

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 C

ha
rlo

u 
Dr

. 
R.

O
.W

.
U

np
la

tt
ed

 C
ity

 a
nd

 C
ou

nt
y 

of
 D

en
ve

r
N

o 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
- A

ss
um

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 h

er
e

Ve
ro

na
 P

la
ce

12
/8

/1
95

2
10

-7
9

30
'-1

5'
N

or
th

 1
5'

 o
f B

rid
le

 P
at

h,
 3

0'
 B

rid
le

 P
at

h-
Ea

se
m

en
t s

ho
w

n 
on

 
Pl

at
 b

ut
 n

o 
tr

ai
l e

xi
st

s.
 

Vi
ki

ng
 A

cr
es

 M
in

or
 L

ot
 A

dj
us

tm
en

t N
o.

1.
pd

f
4/

21
/1

95
3

11
-1

6
N

o 
Ea

se
m

en
ts

Vi
lla

ge
 F

ar
m

As
su

m
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 tr

ai
l i

s l
oc

at
ed

 in
 E

. B
el

le
vi

ew
 A

ve
. R

.O
.W

.

Vi
lla

ge
 H

ei
gh

ts
 A

dd
iti

on
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 M
an

sf
ie

ld
 A

ve
. R

.O
.W

.
Vi

lla
ge

 H
ei

gh
ts

 A
dd

iti
on

As
su

m
e 

tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 V
ill

ag
e 

Ro
ad

 4
0'

 R
.O

.W
.

W
hi

te
s S

ub
di

vi
sio

n
As

su
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l i
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 E
. Q

ui
nc

y 
Av

e.
 6

0'
 R

.O
.W

. 
an

d 
Ra

nd
om

 R
oa

d 
25

' R
.O

.W
.



Appendix A: Updated Easement Book 36

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Ch
er

ry
 H

ill
s V

ill
ag

e 
Ea

se
m

en
t B

oo
k 

2
Ta

bl
e 

A

St
an

le
y 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s,

 In
c.

Pa
ge

 9
 o

f 9
De

ce
m

be
r 2

2,
 2

01
5

W
ilw

el
l A

cr
es

1/
12

/1
95

8
13

-5
8

N
o 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
 n

ot
ed

 o
n 

pl
at

. T
ra

il 
ex

ist
s a

lo
ng

 n
or

th
 si

de
 o

f L
ot

 
1 

an
d 

Lo
t 2

. T
ra

il 
ap

pe
ar

s t
o 

be
 in

 V
ac

at
ed

 K
en

yo
n 

Av
e 

RO
W

.  
15

 'P
riv

at
e 

Ro
ad

 &
 U

til
ity

 E
as

em
en

t i
s n

ot
ed

 o
n 

pl
at

 b
ut

 d
oe

s 
no

t a
llo

w
 fo

r t
ra

ils
.



37 Appendix A: Updated Easement Book

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Ci
ty
 o
f C

he
rr
y 
H
ill
s E

as
em

en
t D

oc
um

en
t R

ev
ie
w

Ta
bl
e 
B

Bo
ok

 &
 P
ag
e

Re
co
rd
in
g 

D
at
e

D
oc
um

en
t N

am
e

 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n

Re
c.
#B

81
21

09
4

10
/0
3/
20

08
Ag

re
em

en
t a

nd
 E
as
em

en
t f
or
 N
on

 M
ot
or
ize

d 
Pu

bl
ic
e 
Tr
ai
l S
ie
_0
91

60
8.
pd

f
Ag

re
em

en
t a

nd
 E
as
em

en
t F

or
 a
 N
on

‐m
ot
or
ize

d 
Pu

bl
ic
 T
ra
il

Re
s.
#1
9 
 S
er
ie
s  2

00
8

09
/1
6/
20

08
Ag

re
em

en
t a

nd
 E
as
em

en
t f
or
 N
on

 M
ot
or
ize

d 
Pu

bl
ic
e 
Tr
ai
l S
ie
_0
91

60
8.
pd

f
A 
Re

so
lu
tio

n 
of
 T
he

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 
Ac
ce
pt
in
g 
Th
e 
De

di
ca
tio

n 
of
 a
  N

on
‐

m
ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Es
m
t.

O
rd
in
an
ce
 #
28

 S
er
ie
s 2

00
8

09
/1
6/
20

08
Ag

re
em

en
t a

nd
 E
as
em

en
t f
or
 N
on

 M
ot
or
ize

d 
Pu

bl
ic
e 
Tr
ai
l S
ie
_0
91

60
8.
pd

f
O
rd
in
an
ce
 N
o.
 1
8,
 S
er
ie
s 2

00
8 
Va

ca
tio

n 
of
 2
0'
 E
as
em

en
t F

or
 N
on

‐m
ot
or
ize

d 
Pu

bl
ic
 T
ra
il.
 A
pp

ea
rs
 th

er
e 
is 
no

 tr
ai
l i
n 
th
e 
va
ca
te
d 
ea
se
m
en

t.

21
33

29
2‐
00

01
_0
06

07
/2
3/
20

02
Ci
ty
 E
as
em

en
t U

se
 A
gr
ee
m
en

t_
Th
e 
Re

se
rv
e 
at
 C
he

rr
y 
Hi
lls
 S
ub

di
vi
sio

n 
HO

A_
07

16
02

.p
df

Ci
ty
 E
as
em

en
t U

se
 A
gr
ee
m
en

t. 
Al
lo
w
s t
he

 H
O
A 
to
 e
nc
ro
ac
h 
w
ith

in
 th

e 
25

' 
br
id
le
 p
at
h 
ea
se
m
en

t i
n 
Lo
ts
 7
,9
,1
1 
&
 1
3 
of
 th

e 
Re

se
rv
e 
at
 C
he

rr
y 
Hi
lls
 

Su
bd

iv
isi
on

.  
Th
e 
pu

rp
os
e 
of
 e
nc
ro
ac
hm

en
ts
 a
re
 to

 p
la
ce
 m

as
on

ry
 w
al
l, 

co
nc
re
te
 si
de

w
al
k,
 ir
rig

at
io
n 
sy
st
em

s a
nd

 la
nd

sc
ap
in
g 
al
on

g 
S 
U
ni
ve
rs
ity

 

Re
c.
#D

20
04

83
1

01
/1
2/
20

12
Ea
se
m
en

t f
or
 N
on

 M
ot
or
ize

d 
Pu

bl
ic
 T
ra
il_
M
cQ

ua
id
_1
11

41
11

.p
df

Ea
se
m
en

t F
or
 N
on

‐m
ot
or
ize

d 
Pu

bl
ic
 T
ra
il 
bu

t n
o 
tr
ai
l e
xi
st
s h

er
e.
 

42
13

1‐
00

01
_0
08

04
/1
0/
20

00
G
ra
nt
 o
f N

on
 M

ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t_
O
lso

n_
Al
pe

rt
_0
20

10
0.
pd

f
G
ra
nt
 o
f N

on
‐m

ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t

10
99

10
0‐
00

01
_0
05

06
/2
0/
20

01
G
ra
nt
 o
f N

on
 M

ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t_
Su
de

rm
an
_0
61

90
1.
pd

f
G
ra
nt
 o
f N

on
‐m

ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t

Re
c.
#B

81
07

22
6

04
/2
0/
20

07
O
rd
in
an
ce
 5
 S
er
ie
s 2

00
7_
Va

ca
tin

g 
Ci
ty
 In
te
re
st
_0
32

00
7.
pd

f
16

' P
ub

lic
 R
ec
re
at
io
na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t t
o 
be

 V
ac
at
ed

 a
lo
ng

 e
as
t s
id
e 
of
 L
ot
 

12
 o
f C

he
rr
y 
Hi
lls
 M

ea
do

w

Re
c.
#B

81
07

22
6

04
/2
0/
20

07
O
rd
in
an
ce
 5
 S
er
ie
s 2

00
7_
Va

ca
tin

g 
Ci
ty
 In
te
re
st
_0
32

00
7.
pd

f
16

' P
ub

lic
 R
ec
re
at
io
na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t, 
Lo
ca
te
d 
En
tir
el
y 
on

 L
ot
 1
4,
 to

 b
e 

De
di
ca
te
d 
‐ E

xi
st
in
g 
9'
 P
riv

at
e 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t l
oc
at
ed

 in
 lo
t 1

2

61
7‐
54

7
9/
3/
19

48
An

 O
rd
in
an
ce
 V
ac
at
in
g 
Po

rt
io
ns
 o
f C

er
ta
in
 S
tr
ee
ts
 a
nd

 A
ve
nu

es
 o
f C

he
rr
y 
Hi
lls
 V
ill
ag
e,
 

Co
lo
ra
do

O
rd
in
an
ce
 V
ac
at
in
g 
a 
po

rt
io
n 
of
 E
. K
en

yo
n 
Av

en
ue

 b
et
w
ee
n 
S.
 C
or
on

a 
an
d 

S.
 F
ra
nk
lin

 S
t.T

ra
il 
ex
ist
s a

lo
ng

 n
or
th
 si
de

 o
f L
ot
 1
 a
nd

 L
ot
 2
. T
ra
il 
ap
pe

ar
s t
o 

be
 in

 V
ac
at
ed

 K
en

yo
n 
Av

e 
RO

W
.  
15

 'P
riv

at
e 
Ro

ad
 &
 U
til
ity

 E
as
em

en
t i
s 

no
te
d 
on

 p
la
t b

ut
 d
oe

s n
ot
 a
llo
w
 fo

r t
ra
ils
.

A9
12

40
73

_0
00

1‐
00

7
07

/3
0/
19

99
A 
Re

so
lu
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
Ci
ty
 C
ou

nc
il 
Ac
ce
pt
in
g 
G
ra
nt
 o
f E

as
em

en
t f
or
 P
ub

lic
 T
ra
il 
Fr
om

 D
en

ve
r 

Fi
rs
t C

hu
rc
h 
of
 th

e 
N
az
ar
en

e‐
Hi
gh
lin
e 
M
ea
do

w
s i
n 
Ch

er
ry
 H
ill
s

G
ra
nt
 o
f 1

6'
 R
ec
re
at
io
na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t

St
an
le
y 
Co

ns
ul
ta
nt
s,
 In
c.

Pa
ge
 1
 o
f 3

De
ce
m
be

r 2
2,
 2
01

5



Appendix A: Updated Easement Book 38

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Ci
ty
 o
f C

he
rr
y 
H
ill
s E

as
em

en
t D

oc
um

en
t R

ev
ie
w

Ta
bl
e 
B

54
36

72
2

08
/0
6/
19

54
De

ed
 fo

r 3
0'
 E
as
em

en
t

Fo
r t
he

 u
se
 b
y 
th
e 
pu

bl
ic
 a
s a

 p
er
pe

tu
al
 ri
gh
t o

f w
ay
, a
nd

 fo
r t
he

 in
st
al
la
tio

n 
an
d 
m
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 o
f u

til
iti
es
.

Re
s.
#1

  S
er
ie
s 2

00
1

01
/1
8/
20

01
A 
Re

so
lu
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
Ci
ty
 C
ou

nc
il 
of
 C
he

rr
y 
Hi
lls
 V
ill
ag
e 
Ac
ce
pt
in
g 
a 
N
on

‐m
ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t a
t 1

 S
ed

gw
ic
k 
Dr
iv
e.

G
ra
nt
 o
f N

on
‐m

ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t

Re
s.
# 
2 
Se
rie

s 2
00

1
01

/1
8/
20

01
A 
Re

so
lu
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
Ci
ty
 C
ou

nc
il 
of
 C
he

rr
y 
Hi
lls
 V
ill
ag
e 
Ac
ce
pt
in
g 
a 
N
on

‐m
ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t a
t 5

2 
Se
dg
w
ic
k 
Dr
iv
e.

G
ra
nt
 o
f N

on
‐m

ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t

Re
c.
#B

10
99

10
0

06
/2
0/
20

01
G
ra
nt
 o
f N

on
‐m

ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t
G
ra
nt
 o
f N

on
‐m

ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t

Re
s.
#8

 S
er
ie
s  2

00
2

07
/2
3/
20

02
A 
Re

so
lu
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
Ci
ty
 C
ou

nc
il 
Ac
ce
pt
in
g 
a 
N
on

‐m
ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t
G
ra
nt
 o
f N

on
‐m

ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l 1
6'
 T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t

Re
s.
#8

 S
er
ie
s 2

00
1

06
/1
9/
20

01
A 
Re

so
lu
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
Ci
ty
 C
ou

nc
il 
of
 C
he

rr
y 
Hi
lls
 V
ill
ag
e 
Ac
ce
pt
in
g 
a 
N
on

‐m
ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t o
n 
Lo
t 2

, T
he

 G
le
n 
at
 C
he

rr
y 
Hi
lls

G
ra
nt
 o
f N

on
‐m

ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l 1
6'
 T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t

Re
s.
#1
3 
Se
rie

s 1
99

8
07

/3
0/
19

99
A 
Re

so
lu
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
Ci
ty
 C
ou

nc
il 
Ac
ce
pt
in
g 
G
ra
nt
 o
f E

as
em

en
t F

or
 P
ub

lic
 T
ra
il 
Fr
om

 V
yr
on

 
Pr
op

er
tie

s,
 In
co
rp
or
at
ed

‐H
ig
hl
in
e 
M
ea
do

w
s i
n 
Ch

er
ry
 H
ill
s

G
ra
nt
 o
f N

on
‐m

ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l 1
6'
 T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t

Re
s.
#1
4 
Se
rie

s  2
00

4
01

/0
7/
20

05
A 
Re

so
lu
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
Ci
ty
 C
ou

nc
il 
Ac
ce
pt
in
g 
a 
N
on

‐m
ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t
G
ra
nt
 o
f N

on
‐m

ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l 1
6'
 T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t

Re
s.
#1
5 
Se
rie

s  2
00

1
11

/2
0/
20

01
A 
Re

so
lu
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
Ci
ty
 C
ou

nc
il 
Ac
ce
pt
in
g 
a 
N
on

‐m
ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t
G
ra
nt
 o
f N

on
‐m

ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t

Re
s.
#1
7 
Se
rie

s 1
99

9
6/
15

/1
99

9

A 
Re

so
lu
tio

n 
of
 T
he

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 
of
 T
he

 C
ity

 o
f C

he
rr
y 
Hi
lls
 V
ill
ag
e 
Au

th
or
izi
ng

 th
e 
M
ay
or
 

to
 E
xe
cu
te
 a
 B
ar
ga
in
 a
nd

 S
al
e 
De

ed
 F
or
 th

e 
Sa
le
 o
f T

ra
ct
s A

 &
 B
, B

ue
ll 
M
an
sio

n 
Su
bd

iv
isi
on

Ad
de

nd
um

 to
 B
ar
ga
in
 a
nd

 S
al
e 
De

ed
 fo

r t
he

 R
es
er
va
tio

n 
of
 P
ub

lic
 T
ra
il 

Ea
se
m
en

t‐
Re

se
rv
at
io
n 
of
 P
ub

lic
 R
ec
re
at
io
n 
Ea
se
m
en

t a
nd

 D
ee
d 
Re

st
ric
tio

n

Re
s.
#1
8 
Se
rie

s 1
99

9
06

/1
5/
19

99
A 
Re

so
lu
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
Ci
ty
 C
ou

nc
il 
of
 C
he

rr
y 
Hi
lls
 V
ill
ag
e 
Ac
ce
pt
in
g 
a 
Ve

hi
cu
la
r A

cc
es
s 

Ea
se
m
en

t f
or
 H
an
di
ca
pp

ed
 P
er
so
ns
 a
nd

 M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 P
ur
po

se
s o

ve
r T

ra
ct
s A

 &
 B

Ve
hu

cu
la
r A

cc
es
s E

as
em

en
t f
or
 H
an
di
ca
pp

ed
 P
er
so
ns
 a
nd

 M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 

Pu
rp
os
es

Re
s.
#1
9 
Se
rie

s 1
99

8
09

/2
3/
19

98
A 
Re

so
lu
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
Ci
rt
y 
Co

un
ci
l A

cc
ep

tin
g 
a 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t A
cr
os
s L

ot
s 4

 &
 

5,
 B
ue

ll 
M
an
sio

n 
Su
bd

iv
isi
on

G
ra
nt
 o
f 1

6'
 B
rid

le
 P
at
h 
Ea
se
m
en

t

St
an
le
y 
Co

ns
ul
ta
nt
s,
 In
c.

Pa
ge
 2
 o
f 3

De
ce
m
be

r 2
2,
 2
01

5



39 Appendix A: Updated Easement Book

City of Cherry Hills Trails Village Trails Inventory

Ci
ty
 o
f C

he
rr
y 
H
ill
s E

as
em

en
t D

oc
um

en
t R

ev
ie
w

Ta
bl
e 
B

Re
s.
#2
3 
Se
rie

s 2
00

0
11

/2
1/
20

00

A 
Re

so
lu
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
Ci
ty
 C
ou

nc
il 
Ex
em

pt
in
g 
Lo
ts
 4
 &
 5
, 1
9 
&
 2
0,
 2
4 
&
 2
5 
, 1
2 
&
 1
3,
 a
nd

 
Tr
ac
ts
 D
 &
 E
 , 
Ch

er
ry
 H
ill
s P

ar
k 
1 
Su
bd

iv
isi
on

 F
ro
m
 F
ul
l S
ub

di
vi
sio

n 
Pr
oc
es
s a

s P
er
m
itt
ed

 
by

 S
ec
tio

n 
7‐
3‐
9(
A)
 o
f t
he

 M
un

ic
ip
al
 C
od

e 
In
 O
rd
er
 T
o 
Ac
ce
pt
 a
 N
ew

 T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t
Ex
em

pt
io
n 
Re

so
lu
tio

n 
in
 O
rd
er
 to

 A
cc
ep

t a
 N
ew

 T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t

O
rd
in
an
ce
 #
1 
Se
rie

s 1
99

8
7/
30

/1
99

9
An

 O
rd
in
an
ce
 V
ac
at
in
g 
a 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t A
cr
os
s L

ot
 6
, B

lo
ck
 1
, H

ig
hl
in
e 

M
ea
do

w
s i
n 
Ch

er
ry
 H
ill
s

Th
e 
de

ve
lo
pe

r r
eq

ue
st
ed

 to
 h
av
e 
th
e 
16

'  
Tr
ai
l E
as
em

en
t r
el
oc
at
ed

 b
y 

gr
an
tin

g 
to
 th

e 
Ci
ty
 a
 n
ew

 re
cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t a
nd

 b
y 
th
e 
Ci
ty
 

Co
un

ci
l v
ac
at
in
g 
th
e 
ex
ist
in
g 
Tr
ai
l E
as
em

en
t

O
rd
in
an
ce
#3

 S
er
ie
s 2

00
2

2/
26

/2
00

2
A 
Bi
ll 
Fo
r a

n 
O
rd
in
an
ce
 o
f T

he
 C
ity

 o
f C

he
rr
y 
Hi
lls
 V
ill
ag
e 
Va

ca
tin

g 
Th
e 
Ci
ty
's 
In
te
re
st
 in

 a
 

N
on

‐M
ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t
Du

e 
to
 th

e 
co
nv
ey
an
ce
 o
f a

 n
on

‐m
ot
or
ize

d 
re
cr
ea
tio

na
l t
ra
il 
ea
se
m
en

t t
he

 
Ci
ty
 fo

un
d 
th
e 
O
rig

in
al
 T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t i
s n

ot
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
.

O
rd
in
an
ce
#4

 S
er
ie
s 2

00
1

4/
24

/2
00

1
An

 O
rd
in
an
ce
 o
f T

he
 C
ity

 o
f C

he
rr
y 
Hi
lls
 V
ill
ag
e,
 C
ol
or
ad
o,
 V
ac
at
in
g 
a 
Tr
ai
l E
as
em

en
t o

n 
Th
e 
Ch

er
ry
 H
ill
s P

ar
k 
I S
ub

di
vi
sio

n 
Pl
at

Th
e 
Ci
ty
 a
cc
ep

et
ed

 a
 d
ed

ic
at
io
n 
of
 a
no

th
er
 1
6'
 re

cr
ea
tio

na
l t
ra
il 
ea
se
m
en

t
th
at
 is
 in

 th
e 
sa
m
e 
ge
ne

ra
l l
oc
at
io
n 
an
d 
pe

rf
or
m
s t
he

 sa
m
e 
fu
nc
tio

n,
 a
 

pu
bl
ic
 h
ea
rin

g 
w
as
 h
el
d 
 a
nd

 th
e 
O
rig

in
al
ly
 D
ed

ic
at
ed

 E
as
em

en
t w

as
 

de
te
rm

in
ed

 to
 b
e 
"n
ot
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
".

O
rd
in
an
ce
#4

 S
er
ie
s 1

99
8

9/
23

/1
99

8
An

 O
rd
in
an
ce
 V
ac
at
in
g 
a 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
an
d 
Dr
ai
na
ge
 E
as
em

en
t A

cr
os
s L

ot
 5
, B

ue
ll 

M
an
sio

n 
Su
bd

iv
isi
on

, C
he

rr
y 
Hi
lls
 V
ill
ag
e,
 A
ra
pa
ho

e 
Co

un
ty
, C
ol
or
ad
o.

De
ve
lo
pe

r r
eq

ue
st
ed

 to
 h
av
e 
th
e 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
an
d 
Dr
ai
na
ge
 E
as
em

en
t

re
lo
ca
te
d 
by

 g
ra
nt
in
g 
to
 th

e 
Ci
ty
 a
 n
ew

 R
ec
re
at
io
na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t. 
He

ar
in
g 
be

fo
r t
he

 P
la
nn

in
g 
an
d 
Zo
ni
ng

 C
om

m
iss
io
n 
w
er
e 
he

ld
 a
nd

 m
ot
io
ns
 

w
er
e 
pa
ss
ed

 to
 v
ac
at
e 
th
e 
pl
at
te
d 
ea
se
m
en

t.

O
rd
in
an
ce
#8

 S
er
ie
s 2

00
2

04
/0
/2
00

2

A 
bi
ll 
Fo
r a

n 
O
rd
in
an
ce
 o
f T

he
 C
ity

 o
f C

he
rr
y 
Hi
lls
 V
ill
ag
e 
Va

ca
tin

g 
Th
e 
Ci
ty
's 
In
te
re
st
, i
f 

an
y,
 to

 a
 c
er
ta
in
 p
ro
pe

rt
y 
w
ith

in
 C
he

na
ng
o 
Av

en
ue

 a
nd

 R
es
er
vi
ng

 a
 P
ub

lic
 P
ed

es
tr
ia
n 
an
d 

Br
id
le
 T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t a
nd

 P
ro
hi
bi
tin

g 
Pa
rk
in
g 
al
on

g 
ot
he

r p
or
tio

ns
 o
f C

he
na
ng
o 
Av

en
ue

.
Th
e 
Ci
ty
 v
ac
at
ed

 a
 p
or
tio

n 
of
 C
he

na
ng
o 
St
re
et
 R
O
W
 a
nd

 re
se
rv
ed

 th
e 
ar
ea
 

va
ca
te
d 
as
 a
 3
0'
 N
on

‐m
ot
or
ize

d 
Re

cr
ea
tio

na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t.

O
rd
in
an
ce
#9

 S
er
ie
s 1

99
6

10
/1
0/
19

97
An

 O
rd
in
an
ce
 V
ac
at
in
g 
a 
po

rt
io
n 
of
 th

e 
Br
id
le
 T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t o
n 
Pl
ot
 3
 a
nd

 P
lo
t 7

, P
ol
ic
hi
o

Su
bd

iv
isi
on

 a
nd

 P
lo
t 3

, W
hi
te
's 
Su
bd

iv
isi
on

.
Ci
ty
 a
pp

ro
ve
d 
a 
ne

w
 m

as
te
r p

la
n 
an
d 
va
ca
te
d 
th
e 
tr
ai
l s
ys
te
m
.

O
rd
in
an
ce
#1
0 
Se
rie

s 1
99

6
10

/1
0/
19

97
An

 O
rd
in
an
ce
 V
ac
at
in
g 
a 
Pr
ot
io
n 
of
 R
an
do

m
 R
oa
d

Ci
ty
 v
ac
at
ed

 p
ub

lic
 R
O
W
 a
nd

 re
se
rv
ed

 a
 2
0'
 U
til
ity

 a
nd

 R
ec
re
at
io
na
l T
ra
il 

Ea
se
m
en

t.

O
rd
in
an
ce
#1
1 
Se
rie

s 2
00

4
1/
7/
20

05

A 
Bi
ll 
fo
r a

n 
O
rd
in
an
ce
 o
f T

he
 C
ity

 o
f C

he
rr
y 
Hi
lls
 V
ill
ag
e 
Va

ca
tin

g 
Th
e 
Ci
ty
's 
In
te
re
st
, i
f 

an
y,
 to

 a
 p
or
tio

n 
of
 a
 P
la
tt
ed

 R
ec
re
at
io
na
l T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t a
nd

 U
til
ity

 E
as
em

en
t a

t 2
1 

Sa
nd

y 
La
ke
 R
oa
d.

Th
e 
pr
op

er
ty
 o
w
er
 p
et
iti
on

ed
 th

e 
Ci
ty
's 
va
ca
tio

n 
of
 a
 p
or
tio

n 
of
 a
 1
6'
 T
ra
il

Ea
se
m
en

t a
nd

 a
  1
0'
 w
id
e 
ut
ili
ty
 e
as
em

en
t, 
th
e 
Ci
ty
's 
co
un

ci
l a
pp

ro
ve
d.
  A

 
16

' e
as
em

en
t f
or
 a
 N
on

‐m
ot
or
ize

d 
Pu

bl
ic
 T
ra
il 
Ea
se
m
en

t w
as
 d
on

at
ed

 a
nd

 
de

di
ca
te
d.

O
rd
in
an
ce
#1
2 
Se
rie

s 1
98

0
7/
15

/1
98

0
An

 O
rd
in
an
ce
 V
ac
at
in
g 
th
e 
Br
id
le
 T
ra
il 
Be

tw
ee
n 
Lo
ts
 1
 a
nd

 2
 o
f T

he
 A
lle
n 
Su
bd

iv
isi
on

 a
nd

 
Lo
ts
 2
 a
nd

 3
 o
f t
he

 O
lso

n 
Su
bd

iv
isi
on

.
Va

ca
tio

n 
of
 tw

o 
se
pa
ra
te
 1
6'
 B
rid

le
 P
at
h 
Ea
se
m
en

ts

O
rd
in
an
ce
#2
8 
Se
rie

s 2
00

8
9/
16

/2
00

8

A 
bi
ll 
fo
r a

n 
O
rd
in
an
ce
 o
f T

he
 C
ity

 o
f C

he
rr
y 
Hi
lls
 V
ill
ag
e 
Va

ca
tin

g 
a 
po

rt
io
n 
of
 T
he

 C
ity

's
in
te
re
st
, i
f a
ny
, t
o 
an

 E
as
em

en
t f
or
 a
 N
on

‐m
ot
or
ize

d 
Pu

bl
ic
e 
Tr
ai
l l
oc
at
ed

 in
 L
ot
 1
, T
he

 
Be

ul
l S
ub

di
vi
sio

n,
 F
ili
ng

 N
o.
4,
 lo
ca
te
d 
in
t N

W
 1
/4
 o
f S
ec
tio

n 
1,
 T
ow

ns
hi
p 
1 
So
ut
h,
 R
an
ge
 

68
 W

es
t o

f t
he

 6
th
 P
M
, C
ity

 o
f C

he
rr
y 
Hi
lls
 V
ill
ag
e,
 C
ol
or
ad
o

Th
e 
Va

ca
tio

n 
an
d 
N
ew

 D
ed

ic
at
io
n 
ch
an
gi
ng

 th
e 
Ex
ist
in
g 
Tr
ai
l o
n 
th
e 
so
ut
h 

sid
e 
of
 L
ot
 1
 fr
om

 o
ne

 th
at
 n
ar
ro
w
s f
ro
m
 2
0 
fe
et
 to

 1
6 
fe
et
, t
o 
a 
tr
ai
l t
ha
t i
s 

ap
pr
ox
im

at
el
y 
18

 fe
et
 w
id
e 
al
on

g 
th
e 
fu
ll 
le
ng
th
 o
f t
he

 so
ut
he

rn
 lo
t l
in
e

St
an
le
y 
Co

ns
ul
ta
nt
s,
 In
c.

Pa
ge
 3
 o
f 3

De
ce
m
be

r 2
2,
 2
01

5



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK



Draft Draft Draft 

February 2, 2016 
City Council 
 

1 

Minutes of the 
City Council of the City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado 

Held on Tuesday, February 2, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. 
At the Village Center 

 
Mayor Laura Christman called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Laura Christman, Councilors Mark Griffin, Earl Hoellen, Alex Brown, Mike 
Gallagher, Klasina VanderWerf, and Katy Brown were present on roll call.  Also present 
were Interim City Manager and Public Works Director Jay Goldie, City Attorney Linda 
Michow, Community Development Director Rob Zuccaro, Police Chief Michelle Tovrea, 
Human Resource Analyst Kathryn Ducharme and City Clerk Laura Smith. 
 
Absent:  none 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Council conducted the pledge of allegiance. 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION PERIOD 
 
South Metro Fire Rescue District Director Hank Eng introduced himself to Council. He 
explained that he represented District 1 or A (the name had not been finalized) and that 
Cherry Hills Village was entirely in his district. 
 
Councilor Hoellen asked if South Metro had re-districted. 
 
Director Eng replied that they had been an Authority before the consolidation of South 
Metro Fire Rescue District with Parker, but now that the consolidation was finalized they 
were officially a single District again. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown asked if the District Board anticipated any measures on their 
May ballot. 
 
Director Eng replied there were no plans to place any measure on the May ballot. He 
noted that Directors were elected district-wide but represented particular areas. He 
indicated that South Metro had a strong safety foundation and offered to provide 
certification classes to Council. 
 
Mayor Christman asked if that offer extended to citizens. 
 
Director Eng confirmed it did. 
 
Mayor Christman noted that should be included in the Crier. 



Draft Draft Draft 

February 2, 2016 
City Council 
 

2 

 
Council thanked Director Eng for his service. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown moved, seconded by Councilor Griffin to approve the 
following items on the Consent Agenda: 
 
 a. Approval of Minutes – January 19, 2016 
 b. Approval of Minutes – January 25, 2016 
 
 The motion passed unanimously. 
 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 
None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Public Hearing - Council Bill 10, Series 2015; Repealing and Reenacting Municipal 
Code Section 16-16-40 Concerning Fences (Public Hearing, second and final reading) 
 
Director Zuccaro presented Council Bill 10, Series 2015 on second and final reading. 
He noted that notice of tonight’s public hearing had been published in the Villager, at the 
Village Center and on the City’s website. He indicated that two public comment letters 
had been received by staff after Council packets had gone out on Friday and they were 
on the dais for Council’s information. No comments had been received by staff prior to 
Friday. Council approved “Version 2” of Council Bill 10, Series 2015 on first reading at 
the January 5, 2016 meeting with the following amendments, which had been 
incorporated into the council bill for second and final reading: 

 Revise the definition of public trail to exclude on-street trails. 
 Further define the 25% repair criteria to clarify that it applies to a single lot line 

and not the entire property boundary. 
 Change the height of fences parallel to public trails, parks or open space in all 

residential zone districts to be 6 ft. maximum height and less than 40% solid. 
 For fences in rear and side yards add a separate category for the R-1 zone 

district allowing 6 ft. maximum height and less than 50% solid, and in other zone 
districts 6 ft. maximum height and up to 100% solid. 

 For fences in rear or side yards adjacent to public roads add a distinction in the 
R-1, R-2, R-3 and R-3A zone districts to allow 6 ft. maximum height and less 
than 25% solid or 4 ft. maximum height and less than 60% solid; and a category 
in the R-4 and R-5 zone districts allowing 6 ft. maximum height and up to 100% 
solid and subject to the landscaping and setback standards. 

Staff also recommended and incorporated the following additional amendments: 



Draft Draft Draft 

February 2, 2016 
City Council 
 

3 

 The definition of public trail was amended to exclude trails and sidewalks located 
in road rights of way.  Fences adjacent to roads would generally contain more 
restrictive regulations than the restrictions proposed for fences along trails.  This 
change in the definition would help clarify which fence regulation will govern.  

 Language was added providing authority to the Community Development 
Director to determine the applicable standard based on whichever standard is the 
most restrictive if more than one fence requirement applies. 

 Language was added to the regulations for fences located between front façade 
line and front property line and fences located adjacent to public roads clarifying 
that fences adjacent to State Highways and fences adjacent to S. Clarkson 
Street and E. Happy Canyon Road fall under a separate regulation.   

 Language was added to the regulations for fences located adjacent to a public 
road in the R-4 and R-5 zone districts and adjacent to S. Clarkson Street and E. 
Happy Canyon Road to clarify and reflect the current regulation that fences less 
than four feet in height may be solid and fences up to six feet in height and 50% 
open may be allowed, all in addition to allowing six-foot tall solid fences subject 
to the minimum setback and landscaping standards.    

 Both E. Quincy Avenue and S. Colorado Boulevard were removed from the 
exception for fences adjacent to designated arterials.   This was inadvertently 
included in “Version 2” of the ordinance that was approved on first reading and 
staff’s understanding of Council’s direction from the meeting was that only S. 
Clarkson Street and E. Happy Canyon Road should be subject to the special 
allowance.   

 The allowance for vehicular gates was changed from a maximum height 
allowance of 10 feet to a maximum height allowance of 4 feet greater than the 
otherwise applicable height limitation for the fence.  This would allow gates up to 
8 feet in height for vehicular access to front yards and gates up to 10 feet in 
height for vehicular access to side or rear yards.   

 
Councilor K. Brown asked how the front façade line would apply to a house built 
diagonally on a lot. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that the most forward point of the home would designate the 
front façade line, which would remain parallel to the lot line and would, in that case, not 
be parallel to the orientation of the house. 
 
Councilor Hoellen noted two typos in the council bill. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied staff would correct the typos. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

February 2, 2016 
City Council 
 

4 

Councilor K. Brown noted that one of the public comment letters expressed concern that 
the resident’s current 6 ft. fence on a rear yard adjacent to a public road would have to 
be reduced to a 4 ft. fence. She asked if the resident would still have the option of a 6 ft. 
fence. 
 
Director Zuccaro indicated that property was in Zone District R3 and those residents 
would still have the option of a 6 ft. fence on a side or rear yard adjacent to a public 
road but the 6 ft. fence could not be solid. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown noted that this property was an illustration of the need for 
staff’s recommended amendment to the definition of public trail to exclude trails and 
sidewalks located in road rights of way. 
 
Director Zuccaro agreed that without staff’s proposed amendment there would be 
confusion for properties adjacent to a road with a trail such as Colorado Boulevard as to 
which fence regulation would govern.  
 
Councilor VanderWerf asked about the additional staff time that would be needed to 
enforce the proposed regulations. 
 
Director Zuccaro explained that the proposed code was considerably more complex 
than the current fencing code.  Because of this complexity, staff anticipated that 
additional staff time would be needed to administer the code.  This would include 
additional time in reviewing permits and conducting inspections to verify compliance, 
assisting contractors and home owners in making applications and understanding the 
new code and updating application forms and application review procedures.  Additional 
code enforcement actions on non-conforming fences were also anticipated.  If the 
council bill was approved, staff would evaluate the impact to staff and City resources 
and may recommend a change to the City’s fence permit fee structure to ensure the 
cost of implementing the code was adequately covered. Staff did not anticipate that 
additional personnel would be needed to administer the proposed code. 
 
Councilor Gallagher asked how many fence permit applications were currently pending. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that staff had not been accepting fence permit applications 
during Council’s consideration of the new code and that ten to fifteen properties had 
expressed a desire to build fences and were waiting for Council’s final decision in order 
to apply for fence permits. 
 
Councilor K. Brown asked what “minimum” referred to in the phrase “minimum rear or 
side yards” in the council bill. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that the minimum yard was the section of property between the 
property line and the setback line. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

February 2, 2016 
City Council 
 

5 

Mayor Christman opened the public hearing at 6:58 p.m. 
 
Bill Lucas, 42 Sedgwick Drive, explained that he lived adjacent to the High Line Canal. 
He noted that he was present as a resident and not as a member of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission. He indicated that a fellow resident, Kevin Iverson, had written a 
letter opposing the new fence code because it would negatively impact safety, noise 
mitigation, privacy and property values. He explained that he had compared crime 
statistics of Cherry Hills Village to a neighborhood in Greenwood Village, Green Oaks, 
where there were no fences and found no difference between the two areas. He noted 
that some experts believed that safety was most positively impacted by eyes on the 
street. He provided burglary statistics. He noted that there was no hard evidence to 
support the idea that fences positively impacted property values. He indicated that he 
did not agree with the concerns raised and encouraged openness in the City. 
 
Josh Howell, 1 Vista Road, explained that he had lived adjacent to Quincy Avenue for 
20 years and that privacy was a huge issue. He indicated that the proposed code would 
eliminate the functionality of fences. He expressed concern with the lack of security 
against coyotes provided by a 4 ft. fence. He indicated that raising his fence from 5 ft. to 
6 ft. had made a significant improvement in noise mitigation. He noted that fences along 
public roads were important for property values. 
 
Lucinda Greene, 2855 Cherryridge Road, explained that she was a citizen of the Village 
and speaking on behalf of the Cherry Hills Land Preserve (CHLP) Board. She indicated 
that the CHLP was formed in 2005 to protect and enhance the open lands and the rural 
character that define the community, and to encourage wise management of these 
scenic treasures as valuable assets for the future. She noted that CHLP was pleased 
with the careful thought and attention that went into the drafting of the proposed 
ordinance with the combined effort of the Council, PTRC, P&Z, and City staff, and 
believed the proposed ordinance reflected the intent to preserve the natural open space 
and view corridors that citizens value in the City while not adversely impacting private 
property rights. She indicated that CHLP believed this ordinance was in keeping with 
the guiding documents of the Blue Ribbon Panel and Master Plan and represented an 
important commitment by the City and its citizens to incent good stewardship of the 
natural assets that the community enjoys within a dense urban corridor. 
 
Jared Hobson, 1510 E. Layton Avenue, explained that he lived on a corner lot and had 
a pool with two young daughters in his backyard, which was adjacent to a public road. 
He expressed concern with the cost of landscaping that would be needed to maintain 
the privacy of a solid fence. He agreed that the proposed code might negatively impact 
property values in some areas. 
 
City Attorney noted that staff had not received the letter referenced by Mr. Lucas and 
asked if Council had received the letter. 
 
Council indicated they had not received the letter. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

February 2, 2016 
City Council 
 

6 

City Attorney asked Mr. Lucas to provide staff with a copy of the letter for the record. 
 
Hearing no further comments the public hearing was closed at 7:14 p.m. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown asked about 6 ft. solid fences with setback and landscaping 
requirements allowed by the proposed code. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied it depended on the Zone District, and that in R1 there would be 
no 6ft. solid fence allowed on any property boundary. 
 
Councilor Gallagher noted that 6 ft. solid fences were not allowed between the property 
line and setback line, but farther into the property they were allowed. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown asked if fences around pools were covered by a separate 
section of the code. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that was correct and that fencing for pools would not be 
impacted by the proposed regulations. 
 
Councilor K. Brown asked if the pool fencing could be on the perimeter of a lot. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that the fencing could be within the setback but the pool itself 
could not. 
 
Councilor Griffin moved, seconded by Councilor VanderWerf to approve Council Bill 10, 
Series 2015 repealing and replacing Section 16-16-40 of the Cherry Hills Village 
Municipal Code concerning fences, as proposed in Exhibit A of the February 2, 2016 
staff memorandum. 
 
The following votes were recorded: 
 

Gallagher   yes 
Griffin    yes 
A. Brown   yes 
VanderWerf   yes 
K. Brown   yes 
Hoellen   yes 

 
Vote on the Council Bill 10-2015: 6 ayes.  0 nays.  The motion carried. 
 
Council Bill 3, Series 2016; Amending Article VII of Chapter 7 Concerning Unmanned 
Aircraft Systems (second and final reading) 
 
City Clerk Smith presented Council Bill 3, Series 2016 on second and final reading. She 
explained that the bill would amend the City’s registration requirement for drones to 
agree with the federal threshold of 0.55 pounds, and clarify the City process for federally 



Draft Draft Draft 

February 2, 2016 
City Council 
 

7 

registered drone owners. She noted that the amendments to the council bill identified by 
Council during first reading had been incorporated into the council bill for second and 
final reading. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown moved, seconded by Councilor VanderWerf to approve 
Council Bill 3, Series 2016; amending Article VII of Chapter 7 concerning Unmanned 
Aircraft Systems on second and final reading as submitted in Exhibit A of the February 
2, 2016 staff memorandum. 
 
The following votes were recorded: 
 

Griffin    yes 
A. Brown   yes 
VanderWerf   yes 
K. Brown   no 
Hoellen   yes 
Gallagher   yes 

 
Vote on the Council Bill 3-2016:  5 ayes.  1 nays.  The motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Public Hearing – Resolution 3, Series 2016; Approving a New Hotel and Restaurant 
Liquor License for Cherry Hills Sushi Co at 1400 E. Hampden Avenue Suite 110 
 
City Clerk Smith presented an application for a new hotel and restaurant liquor license 
for Cherry Hills Sushi Co LLC at 1400 E. Hampden Ave. Suite 110. She explained that 
the application had been reviewed by staff and was found to be complete and without 
any issues. She indicated that tonight’s public hearing had been noticed in the Villager, 
at the Village Center, on the website, and at the premises. She explained that 
applicants could circulate and submit a petition to demonstrate the needs of the 
neighborhood but this applicant had not chosen to do so. She noted that a map showing 
all existing licensed premises and this proposed premises was included as Exhibit E to 
staff’s memo. She indicated that the applicant was present to answer any questions and 
staff recommended approval of the application. 
 
Mayor Christman opened the public hearing at 7:22 p.m. Hearing no comments, the 
public hearing was closed at 7:23 p.m. 
 
Councilor K. Brown moved, seconded by Councilor VanderWerf to approve Resolution 
3, Series 2016, Approving a New Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for Cherry Hills 
Sushi Co LLC at 1400 East Hampden Avenue Suite 110 in the City of Cherry Hills 
Village. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

February 2, 2016 
City Council 
 

8 

Transportation Assessment Proposal - FHU 
 
Interim City Manager/Director Goldie explained that on October 20, 2015 staff 
presented to City Council the initial Transportation Analysis proposal submitted by 
Felsburg Holt and Ullevig (FHU).  This original proposal was based on the RFQ that 
was advertised by the City as a Comprehensive Traffic Analysis within the Village.  
Focused on feedback from City Council, staff has worked with FHU to change the 
proposal to an intensive data collection project.  The current proposed program was 
designed to gather baseline information to be used as a tool to document current traffic 
issues and give the City the ability to make informed decisions as how to best mitigate 
future issues and needs. The System Assessment has three major components as 
outlined in the revised scope: 

 Task 1:  Intersection Data Collection and Analysis 
 Task 2:  School Evaluation 
 Task 3:  Cut Through Traffic Assessment  

The assessment would give the City the knowledge necessary to address residents’ 
concerns about traffic congestion and the true origin of the vehicles traveling through 
Cherry Hills Village.  Without collecting this data staff could only make assumptions as 
to the effect of cut through and school traffic on the congestion and volume related 
issues that are occurring in the interior of the Village. The cost for the project would be 
$74,040.00.  The 2016 budget for the project was $75,000.00. 
 
Councilor Hoellen acknowledged staff’s work in cutting the proposal cost in half. He 
reiterated his concern from the October meeting regarding the value of the project if no 
changes would actually be made that could impact traffic in the City. 
 
Interim City Manager/Director Goldie indicated that the proposed study was purely for 
data collection and would not propose any mitigation measures. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown noted that the proposal did include some recommendations 
but not the full analysis that the original proposal had included. He suggested that one 
recommendation could involve the stop light at University and Quincy as it related to 
school traffic. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf indicated that she was interested in the study as a baseline for 
cut through traffic and the projections that the consultant would develop to see how 
future development surrounding the City would influence traffic. She indicated she was 
very supportive of the study. 
 
Councilor K. Brown indicated she shared Councilor Hoellen’s concerns, but suggested 
that information about cut-through traffic versus residential traffic might be helpful in 
determining traffic calming measures. 
 
Councilor Hoellen questioned the importance of vehicle origin on traffic calming 
measures. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

February 2, 2016 
City Council 
 

9 

Mayor Christman noted that there would be significant development in the areas 
surrounding the City over the next two to three years and suggested postponing the 
study until after that time. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown indicated that information increased his sense of urgency to 
complete this study now in order to have baseline data to compare in the future. He 
noted that the current proposal had three clear focal points which he believed was more 
appropriate at this time than the more involved first proposal. 
 
Interim City Manager/Director Goldie noted that follow-up studies would not be as 
expensive as this initial study. He suggested that one mitigation measure that might be 
suggested based on the data would be to install a stop light similar to the one in Belmar 
which prohibited left turns during rush hour. 
 
Councilor Hoellen noted that the Master Plan and Blue Ribbon Panel Report 
emphasized an open community with no gates or private roads and so it was highly 
unlikely that the Council would approve draconian measures regardless of the data. He 
added that any safety issues would be addressed immediately by the Police 
Department and would not wait for a study. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf suggested that if traffic issues deteriorated enough a future City 
Council might consider more draconian measures. 
 
Councilor Gallagher indicated that increased traffic would occur and would affect 
residents’ lifestyles. He noted that apps showing the fastest routes often used small 
neighborhood streets. 
 
Councilor Hoellen noted that Quincy was already at maximum capacity during rush 
hour. 
 
Councilor Griffin indicated that he had mixed feelings about the study since the City had 
no control over University, Hampden or Belleview. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown noted that the Master Plan identified cut-through traffic as a 
major concern. 
 
Councilor Hoellen indicated that if there were issues they could be addressed now 
without a study. 
 
Councilor K. Brown noted that while traffic on Quincy was fairly constant, that was not 
the case on other streets in the City. 
 
Mayor Christman indicated that the data would be valuable to share with residents, 
although $74,040 was still a high price. She added that a baseline would be helpful to 
compare to future studies if the future studies were significantly less costly. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

February 2, 2016 
City Council 
 

10

Councilor VanderWerf stated that the data could be used to justify future action. 
 
Councilor Gallagher asked about the history of the speed humps on Albion. 
 
Interim City Manager/Director Goldie explained that the City’s Traffic Calming Policy 
requires a majority of properties within the impact area in order for the City to conduct a 
speed survey. If the speed survey indicates a speeding problem then improvements will 
be paid for by the City. If no speeding problem is indicated then residents may choose 
to pay for improvements themselves if 80% support from the impact area is 
documented. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown indicated that a speeding problem had been documented on 
Albion so the City had paid for the speed humps. 
 
Councilor Griffin asked if the traffic study data would be helpful to the Police 
Department. 
 
Chief Tovrea replied that it would not be directly helpful since officers wrote tickets 
regardless of the origin of the vehicle, and that the study would likely support what the 
officers already knew through anecdotal evidence. 
 
Interim City Manager/Director Goldie noted that in the past the schools had offset 
starting times but now started at the same time and that was an impact to traffic. 
 
Councilor K. Brown moved, seconded by Councilor VanderWerf to approve the contract 
for services with Felsburg Holt and Ullevig in the amount of $74,040.00 for the 
completion of the Traffic Analysis as outlined in the attached proposal and scope of 
work. 
 
The motion passed 5 yes, 1 no. 
 
REPORTS 
 
Mayor’s Report 
 
Mayor Christman noted that the March 1st Council meeting was also Caucus Night for 
Colorado. She asked if Council would have a quorum that evening. 
 
Council determined they would not have a quorum for March 1st. 
 
Mayor Christman noted that a public hearing was scheduled for March 1st. 
 
Director Zuccaro indicated that the public hearing could be continued to a future 
meeting. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

February 2, 2016 
City Council 
 

11

Mayor Christman reported that resident Alice Abrams had written a love letter to the City 
Council in Cherry Hills Living Magazine. She indicated that she would contact St. Mary’s 
Academy about holding the May 14th Council retreat at their facility. 
 
Members of City Council 
 
Councilor Gallagher noted that he had seen his neighbors running early this morning 
and commented on what a wonderful place the Village was to live in. 
 
Councilor Griffin reported there was no Board of Adjustment and Appeals meeting for 
February. He added that he had received several complaints from his neighbors about 
coyotes. 
 
Chief Tovrea reported that there had been one dog attack by coyotes so far this year. 
She noted that the dog had lived and the Police Department was addressing the issue. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown reported that he and Mayor Christman had met with the 
CDOT Commissioner and had reviewed several City issues including the paving of 
University. 
 
Mayor Christman added they had discussed the curb and gutter issue on University as 
well. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf had no report. 
 
Councilor K. Brown noted there was a Centennial Airport Noise Roundtable meeting 
tomorrow but she was unable to attend. She added that the group had asked her to 
serve as their Vice Chair and she was considering the position and flattered to be 
asked. She reported that there was an FAA session on the new noise impact maps but 
these would have no impact on the City. She indicated that she would attend the 
Colorado Municipal League’s legislative workshop next week for her own interest. She 
reported that when she had first joined Council about four years ago a constituent had 
brought to her attention an issue with turning left onto Dahlia from west bound Hampden 
and expressed the need for a turn signal at that intersection. She noted that the 
intersection was in Denver and the City’s Mayor at the time had met with the Denver 
Council person but the data had not warranted a turn signal. She noted that at the time 
other residents had expressed concern that a turn signal might result in increased cut-
through traffic on Dahlia. She indicated that in the past month she was aware of two 
major accidents at that intersection and suggested that it might be a safety issue that 
was worth re-evaluating. She noted that City residents frequently used that intersection. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown noted that CDOT was very reluctant to take any time away 
from the light cycle. 
 
Mayor Christman questioned if the accidents had involved left turns. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

February 2, 2016 
City Council 
 

12

Councilor K. Brown agreed that she did not know if the accidents had involved left turns. 
She suggested that another study might be done to evaluate the safety of the 
intersection. 
 
Councilor Hoellen reported that he had been meeting with Interim City Manager/Director 
Goldie regarding the Public Works Facility Plan and was pleased with staff’s work. He 
noted that the next step was to finalize the Englewood property. 
 
Members of City Boards and Commissions 
 
None 
 
City Manager & Staff 
 
Interim City Manager/Director Goldie had no report. 
 
City Attorney 
 
City Attorney Michow reported that the Colorado Supreme Court had decided the case 
of Stephen Ryals v. City of Englewood which was a legal challenge to the city’s sex 
offender registration program. The Court had ruled that the city ordinance was not pre-
empted by state statute and that the issue was of mixed state and local concern. She 
noted this was considered a win for home rule municipalities. 
 
Councilor Hoellen asked if the City had an ordinance related to where sex offenders 
were permitted to live. 
 
Chief Tovrea replied there was not a City ordinance but that sex offenders had to 
register annually with the Police Department. 
 
City Attorney Michow indicated the concern was that all home rule municipalities would 
prohibit sex offenders and therefore they would concentrate in statutory towns or areas 
with no regulations. She added that the case also involved some constitutional 
challenges that the Court had not addressed. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:11 p.m. 
 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Laura Christman, Mayor 
 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Laura Smith, City Clerk 
































































































































































































































